Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Health, Schools and Care Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022
6.00 pm.
Training and Conference Suite, First Floor,
Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Minutes

3-9

Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on
25th Nov 2021
3

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

6

Rochdale Locality Operating Model
To consider a report of the Portfolio Holders for Health and Adult Care

10 - 19

and Wellbeing
7

Market Oversight Report Q1 - Q3 2021/22

20 - 32

To consider a report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Care and
Wellbeing
8

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021-22:
Quarter 3 Performance Update

33 - 70

To consider a report of the Portfolio Holders for Health, Children’s
Services and Education and Adult Care and Wellbeing
9

1st & 2nd Quarter Social Care Complaints full report

71 - 90

To consider a report of the Portfolio Holders for Adult Care and
Wellbeing and Children’s’ Services and Education
10

YourTrust Overview Oct Dec 2021
To consider a presentation of YourTrust representative

Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Iram Faisal
Councillor James Gartside
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Kieran Heakin
John Mcgrath
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Billy Sheerin
Councillor Patricia Sullivan
For more information about this meeting, please contact
Fabiola Fuschi, Senior Governance and Committee Officer
01706 924725
fabiola.fuschi@rochdale.gov.uk

91 - 103

Agenda Item 2
HEALTH, SCHOOLS AND CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 25th November 2021
PRESENT: Councillor Dutton (in the Chair); Councillors Dale, Davidson,
Emsley, Iram Faisal, Gartside, Hartley and Sullivan.
OFFICERS: C. Richardson (Director of Strategic Commissioning/DASS),
T. Harrison (Assistant Director - Commissioning (Prevention and Adult Social
Care), J. Hassall (Assistant Director Children's Social Care), J. Bowers (Adult
Care Directorate), F. Davies, H. Heaton (Children’s Directorate) and
P. Thompson (Resources Directorate).
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: A. Clarke (Independent Chair – RBSCP), A. King
(Chief Executive – Your Trust) and E. Rowe (Director of Finance – Your
Trust).
15

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Heakin, Mir and
Sheerin; Mr. J. McGrath (Co-opted Member) and Ms. K. Jones (HealthWatch
Rochdale).

16

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interests.

17

MINUTES
The Committee considered the Minutes of the previous meeting held 9th
September 2021.
The Chair advised that, under his delegated powers, he had exempted certain
reports that had been presented to the Integrated Commissioning Board and
to the Cabinet, from the ‘Call-in’ process. These specifically related to revised
contract arrangements for the Integrated Community Equipment Service and
a report regarding proposed ‘Adult Social Care Fee Rates 2022/2023’.
Resolved:
1. That the Minutes of the meeting of the Health, Schools and Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 9th September 2021, be
approved, as a correct record.
2. The actions of the Chair be noted.

18

BOROUGH
SAFEGUARDING
CHILDREN
PARTNERSHIP
AND
ROCHDALE BOROUGH SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD - ANNUAL
REPORT 2020/2021
The Committee scrutinised the Annual report, 2020/2021, of the Borough
Safeguarding Children Partnership and Rochdale Borough Safeguarding
Adults Board. The report provided details about current needs in the Borough,
the availability, quality and effectiveness of services to respond to that need,

Page 3

and on the work of the two Boards themselves. The overarching aim of the
report was to assist, in any way possible for all people living in the Rochdale
borough to lead safer lives.
The Board’s Annual Report, 2020/2021, showed how agencies had come
together during a difficult year, under exceptional circumstances, to continue
to do their best to safeguard some of the most vulnerable people living in the
Borough. The COVID-19 pandemic had proved challenging for all, and the
Board’s Chair felt that there had been a collective energy across all partners
to continue to do our best for the adults, children and young people of
Rochdale.
Throughout the last year Rochdale Borough Safeguarding Children
Partnership and Safeguarding Adults Board had prioritised the safeguarding
and protection of the Borough’s most vulnerable children and young people,
and adults with care and support needs, continuing to hold training and
learning opportunities, facilitating learning reviews and obtaining assurance
that the response to safeguarding concerns remains strong and effective.
The Board and Partnership met regularly throughout the pandemic and the
Chair expressed her gratitude to all members for their continued engagement
and commitment whilst also working under extreme pressure in responding to
the extra demands from COVID-19.
The Annual Report reflected on the information about agency performance
derived from data collection and analysis, audits and case reviews. Many of
the performance measures used scored in ranges that were identifiable as
reflecting good practice.
It was noted that higher than average levels of deprivation continued to have a
significant negative impact on the Borough’s population, with both higher
levels of child poverty and poorer health and life expectancy being recorded in
parts of the Borough. It was noted that the Borough’s population is growing
faster in the areas of highest deprivation.
Members sought clarity on how well agencies had responded to the
challenges set in 2020/2021 and the risks incorporated within the challenges
for 2021/2022.
Resolved:
That the Borough Safeguarding Children Partnership and Rochdale Borough
Safeguarding Adults Board’s Annual Report 2020/2021 be commended.
19

YOUR TRUST
The Chair welcomed Your Trust’s (formerly Link4Life) Chief Executive, Mr. A.
King and their Director of Finance, Ms. E. Rowe, to the meeting. It had been
agreed that Your Trust present quarterly performance reports to this Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, to assist Members in developing an understanding of
the depth and scope of services provided by the Trust and also how the Trust
is performing against recognised key performance indicators.

Page 4

Your Trust was described, by their Chief Executive, as a delivery partner for
Rochdale Borough Council managing leisure and cultural venues in the
borough on behalf of the Council. It was an independent charity but on that
worked closely with the Council. It is governed by a Board of Trustees,
including three Rochdale Borough Councillors, who acted in a voluntary
capacity to oversee the management of Your Trust. Key aims of Your Trust
were a desire to change things for the better for residents of the Borough, for
example by improving the prospects of the Borough’s children and young people’s
chances of a hopeful future; to improve quality of life for adults who are at risk of
chronic health conditions; and to reduce isolation and frailty in older people.
The buildings in which Your Trust operate are all owned by Rochdale Borough
Council but the Trust makes a contribution to their capital cost every year. The
Council invests in the buildings (e.g. energy efficiency, gym refurbs) which, in turn,
allowed Your Trust to return efficiency savings every year.
Your Trust’s income was generated from three main sources: the Council’s
Management Fee (22%), earned income (60%) and external funding (18%).
Profits (after efficiencies) are invested back into the community. Your Trust keeps
a stability reserve fund (equivalent to 2.5 months budgeted expenditure) and the
Trust used £360k reserves in 2020/2021 to cover the deficit as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, and are prepared to use more again in the current financial
year.
The Chief Executive referred to the Trust’s Management Fee, over half of
which was spent on the Events, Arts and Heritage Service, where it is harder
to charge commercial fees. However the service also attracted external
funding (often up to 50% of gross costs), which enabled Your Trust to provide
even more programmes and projects both in venues and in the community.
Around 10% of the Management Fee supported the gross costs of the
Community Health and Participation Service. However this team generated
over three times as much in external income and contracts, which support
those most in need in the Borough’s communities.
In terms of the key financial issues relating to Your Trust , the Committee was
informed that the forecast deficit to year-end had reduced from original
estimates because of the strong ‘build-back’ in income, following the worst
months of the Covid-19 pandemic. Your Trust are presently forecasting a
£236,000 deficit at the end of the 2021/2022 financial year. However it was
advised that caution should be taken with regard to the forecast because of
the potential for further restrictions being introduced, and the staffing situation.
The main source of income after the Management Fee was from Leisure
income. This was descrbed as ‘building back’ very well after the last lockdown
period from a low-point at December 2020 when numbers had dropped to just
over 5,600. However there was a 1% decline in October 2021 despite strong
new membership numbers – Your Trust was seeking to understand why
people were leaving.

Page 5

Recruitment across leisure trusts in Greater Manchester was described as
being very challenging at present. For instance, swimming, where there were
savings because of staff shortages but plenty of demand in the community.
Your Trust had budgeted to fill staff vacancies. Un-filled vacancies would have
an impact on the Trust’s final position, creating savings, but putting immense
pressure on existing teams to keep facilities open.
Resolved:
That the Your Trust presentation be noted and welcomed.
20

ADULT SOCIAL CARE
MAKING EXPERIENCES COUNT
POLICY
REVIEW
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Strategic
Commissioning/DASS regarding the Council’s processes and procedures for
dealing with Adult Social Care Complaints. The Local Authority Social
Services and National Health Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009
placed a duty on Local Authorities on the way that complaints about Health
and Social Care matters were dealt with.
Adult Care Services were those functions exercised by the Council in
accordance with the Care Act 2014, which relate to care and support services
to adults with a learning disability, physical disability, a mental health problem,
older adults and also to carers. A Health and Social Care complaint was
therefore a matter that arose from care and support assessments, adult health
or adult care services, members of staff working in Adult Care or health
services or any policy concerning these.
The “Making Experiences Count - Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care
and Health” policy had been in place since 2009. This complaint policy
referred to adult care and health matters delivered by Rochdale Adult Care
Services that service users or their representatives approach Adult Care
about. Not all complaints received by Adult Care were eligible to be
considered under the statutory procedure, and where a complaint did not
meet the criteria, it would be considered under the Council’s Corporate
Complaints Procedure.
Due to the increased number of Adult Care related complaints that have been
received, in recent years, it was proposed to refresh the “Making Experiences
Count” process to make it an ‘outward public facing’ policy to help members of
the public be clearer of how Adult Care will respond to their complaint. If
agreed, the policy will be placed on the council website in a way that makes it
clearer to members of the public how to complain.
An ‘inward facing’ procedure will be written for Adult Care staff to help make
the process when dealing with a complaint explicitly clear. The procedure will
contain templates to help provide consistency when responding with a
complaint. The procedure launch will be accompanied by training sessions for
staff.

Page 6

The Committee were advised that the submitted report was due to be
presented to the Cabinet’s meeting on 14th December 2021 and the views of
the members of this Committee were sought prior to a determination by
Cabinet.
Resolved:
1.
That the Cabinet be recommended to approve the updated “ Making
Experiences Count- Joint Complaints Process for Adult Care and
Health” policy in order to improve the customer experience should they
need to make a complaint.
2.
That the Cabinet be requested to agree for clearer signposting to the
Adult Care complaint policy on the Council’s website.
21

NEED FOR PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2022 - 2025
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services and Education/Director of Children’s Services, consulting Members
on the proposed allocation of primary school places 2022 - 2025.
The Committee were informed that the inflows of pupils arriving into the
borough after the start of Reception intake, and in higher year groups, had
been higher than ever since January 2021, leading to significant pressures in
older primary school year groups. These ‘in-year’ school applications had
‘plateaued’ towards the end of the 2019/2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic,
but had subsequently risen to be above previous levels.
The Committee were advised that the report had been submitted to the
Council’s Cabinet meeting on 23rd November 2021, where the
recommendations contained therein, were approved.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.

22

SECONDARY SCHOOL PLACES 2022 - 2025
The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Children’s Services
which examined the projected number of pupils that were expected to be
attending secondary schools in the Borough from 2022 to 2025 and the
provision of secondary schools. The Committee were advised that the new
Edgar Wood Academy had opened for 2021’s year 7 intake in Middleton. The
second new mainstream Secondary school for Rochdale borough, that was to
be run by the Star Academies Trust, was due to open in 2023 in Littleborough.
The new Secondary SEN school which will be run by the New Bridge Trust,
was now scheduled to be open in 2023.
The submitted report covered details of the new schools and the capacity of
school places in the borough’s secondary school sector.
Members were advised that this report had been submitted to the Council’s
Cabinet meeting on 23rd November 2021, where the recommendations
contained therein, were approved.

Page 7

Resolved:
That the report be noted.
23

ADULT, CHILDREN & PUBLIC HEALTH DIRECTORATE PLANS 2021-22:
QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE UPDATE
The Committee scrutinised a joint report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s
Services and Education/Cabinet Member for Adult Care and
Wellbeing/Director of Children’s Services/Director of Commissioning/Director
of Public Health, which set out progress towards achievement of the targets
contained in the Adult Care Directorate Plan 2021/2022, Children’s Services
Directorate Plan 2021/2022 and Public Health Directorate Plan 2021/2022.
In Adult Care Services 9 (67%) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing, 3 (25%) actions had been completed and one
action (8%) was still incomplete after the ‘due date’ had passed. The chart,
detailed in the report, showed the overall performance of the Directorate in
meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2 (30th September 2021). In
considering this element of the report Members commented on the actions for
the Community Mental Health national framework that was to be implemented
in conjunction with commissioning, plans that have been developed to
modernise community mental health services. The mental health mandate
provides a high level plan and includes specific sections on crisis
development, dementia and community mental health transformation. It was
suggested that a report on mental health mandates be presented to a future
meeting of the Committee. A Member referred to the Dementia Action Plan
referred to in the report and it was suggested that a specific report on the
development of the Dementia Action Plan be presented to a future meeting of
the Committee.
In Children’s Services 12 (75%) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing. Two actions (12.5%) were not fully complete
and the action due date had since passed and a further two actions (12.5%)
were fully completed. The chart, detailed in the report, showed the overall
performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end of
Quarter 2 (30th September 2021).
In the Public Health Service 10 (67%) of the actions included in the 2021/2022
Directorate Plan were ongoing, 3 (20%) actions were not fully completed and
the action due date had since passed and 2 (13%) were fully completed. The
chart, detailed in the report, showed the overall performance of the Directorate
in meeting its plan targets at the end of Quarter 2 (30th September 2021).
Members of the Committee felt that it was important to note and record their
appreciation of the hard work and sacrifices that staff in these services had
made in the past 18 - 20 months, as the Council continues to deal with the
effects of Covid-19. Staff in these services have often found themselves in the
‘front-line’ and members commended their dedication and their ability to keep
providing services for some of our most vulnerable residents in such difficult
circumstances.

Page 8

Resolved:
1. That the report be noted.
2. That a report on mental health mandates (Adult Care Service) be
presented to a future meeting of the Committee.
3. That a report on report on the development of the Dementia Action
Plan (Adult Care Service) be presented to a future meeting of the
Committee.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 16th March 2022
Portfolio: Health, Adult Care and Wellbeing
Report Author: Claire Richardson / Sandra Croasdale
Public/Private Document: Public

Rochdale Locality Operating Model
1.0

Executive Summary

The Rochdale Locality Operating Model has been developed through engagement
with all system partners. It continues to evolve as further guidance is received from
NHS England/Improvement and as the GM Health and Social Care
Partnership/Integrated Care System develop.
This paper sets out the key components of the operating model, including:
• Development of a System Board to set the strategic direction for place
including population outcomes and finance
• Appointment of a Place Lead
• Further development of the LCO Board to be the key delivery partnership for
improving services for our population to deliver improved outcomes
• Further development of our Neighbourhoods model to drive the reduction in
health inequalities, improvement in experience and outcomes taking an
asset-based approach.
It also describes how our model aligns with the requirements set out in the Health
and Care Bill.
The paper outlines the high level decisions that have been made to support the
development of our operating model to date.
2.0

Recommendation

2.1
Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee members are
asked to support the Rochdale Locality Operating Model, in line with the Health and
Care Bill (2021) and Greater Manchester Integrated Care System.

3.0

Reason for Recommendation

Page 10

17th March 2
Public Healt
Claire Richa
Public

3.1 To provide Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an
update in relation to the development of the Rochdale Locality Operating
Model, in line with GM Integrated Care System developments.
4.0
4.1

Key Points for Consideration
Greater Manchester Integrated Care System

Since 2001, Greater Manchester (GM) has been at the forefront of integrated care.
In 2014, GM reached a unique deal to devolve a wide range of powers, budgets and
responsibilities from central Government. In 2016, GM took control and
responsibility for its £6 billion health and care budget through the devolution
agreement with Government and has since been working to plan and deliver
sustainable and integrated health and care.
The Health and Care Bill (2021) outlines a requirement to establish Integrated Care
Systems (ICS), which will extend and continue the journey of integration that GM and
its localities have been on so far.
The changes aim to make it easier to work across organisational and geographical
boundaries and strengthen leadership at place to ensure there is the right local
decision making, as well as the benefits that have come from scale and
collaboration.
Work is underway at a GM level to design the governance that will enable GM to
move towards an ICS, including holding the statutory functions along with pursuing
broader objectives, including improving population health, tackling the wider
determinants which impact on health and wellbeing and public sector reform.
The Integrated Commissioning Board, and from April 2021 the Shadow System
Board, have received regular updates on current guidance and information from the
Greater Manchester Integrated Care System. This has supported the development of
our Locality Operating Model to date.
4.2

GM Place Based Lead Accountability Framework

The GM Place Based Lead Accountability Framework has been developed and
shared across the GM system in early February. The framework outlines three ways
of working which will be adopted in the GM system from the 1st April






A place-based lead- bringing the parties together, driving the changes to
improve health, tackle health inequalities and improve everybody’s access to,
experience of, and outcomes of care
A Place Based Partnership Committee (Locality Board) – connecting the
partners and their contributions through the joint stewardship of public
resources with common purpose to improve health and wellbeing
A Chair of the Place Based Partnership- ensuring all contributions are valued
and facilitating effective joint working

This is fully reflective of the ambition outlined within Rochdale Operating Model and
is a development of the model that has been in place locally for several years.

Page 11

4.3 Rochdale Local Context
Greater Manchester Health and Care Partnership has operated at 3 main levels
since its inception – GM, locality and neighbourhood.
Rochdale has been on a journey to integrate health and care services since 2013 so
is in a strong position to respond to the requirements of the health and care white
paper.
In 2015 the Rochdale Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) was established which
brought together political and clinical leadership across the Borough to make joined
up decisions around shared commissioning plans and a pooled budget. The
Rochdale ICB has delegated decision making for the Health and Care pooled
budget, which is now £380m.
In addition to integrating our commissioning functions our Local Care Organisation
(LCO) One Rochdale Health and Care, has developed into a strong local provider
partnerships. The LCO takes the form of a partnership that steers and oversees the
design and delivery of integrated health and care services for our local population
and is made up of the key local providers across acute, community, mental health,
primary care, adult social care and voluntary sectors along with public health
expertise.
This partnership has continued to develop during the pandemic with teams at
operational, senior management and executive level coming together across the
system to respond to Covid and transform services to continue to meet the needs of
our population.
Our neighbourhoods model started to be developed in 2015 with the joint
commissioning (through the Integrated Commissioning Board) of the Integrated
Neighbourhood Team and Integrated Tier of Services which aimed to bring health
and care together to wrap support around individuals to meet their health and care
needs.
Figure 1 below outlines Rochdale’s Integration Journey to date.

Page 12

4.4 Rochdale Locality Operating Model
Our future operating model has been designed to support the delivery of improved
outcomes for the people of Rochdale. Underpinning this is the implementation of the
Rochdale Borough’s All Age Prevention Strategy1. This all age, whole system
strategy is based on an understanding that having a good life is determined through
many factors that act in a complex way. It is ambitious in that it seeks to advance a
shared understanding, vision and action plan for the whole system by:










Identifying and acting on “the determinants of a good life” such as education,
housing, income, relationships, occupation and environment which are
fundamental to inequalities.
Using the ‘Good help’ Principles as a basis for everything we do across the
whole system
Prioritising prevention by having a model that is accessible throughout the
stages of need and which reaches out into neighbourhoods and places
Signposting to services, providing support and response when needed and
meeting information needs.
Focussing on residents from pre-birth through to old age and how people can
be supported throughout their lives.
It recognises the whole system from the streets and communities that people
identify to be home to the institutions that are tasked with administrating
resources across the whole borough.
It aims to enable the system to work together across boundaries, recognising
that sharing definitions, resources and information is enormously challenging.

There are four component parts which describe our new operating model.
•
•
•
•

Development of a System Board to set the strategic direction for place
including population outcomes and finance
Appointment of a Place Lead
Further development of the LCO Board to be the key delivery mechanism
for improving services for our population to deliver improved outcomes
Further development of our Neighbourhoods model to drive the reduction in
health inequalities, taking an asset-based approach.

The successful implementation of this model will give us the best opportunity to
improve outcomes for our residents by wrapping the right level of support around
individuals, bringing our collective resources together to deliver the most effective
and efficient services which meet the needs of our communities.
The Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) and Shadow System Board have been
fundamental to the development of the operating model described in this paper. The
table below sets out the key discussions through ICB to date:

1

Rochdale Borough’s All Age Prevention Strategy, The Building Blocks to Recovery, 2021 – 2025

Page 13

Date
December
2020
January
2021

March
2021

January
2022

Discussion/Recommendations
High level commissioning intentions including the
development of system working and Local Care
Organisation
Workshop session to discuss initial thinking in
response to the White Paper to support the
development of our operating model
Further discussion session re development of our
operating model with the following
recommendations:
 Establish the System Board in shadow
 The functions of the System Board
 Membership of the System Board
 An update in relation to the Integrated
Delivery Board (LCO)
 Timescales for development of the Shadow
Systems Board
Detailed paper describing the operating model
discussed. Paper sought support to the direction of
travel and ongoing development of the model

Outcome
Supported
Supported
direction of
travel for
further
development
Approved

Supported

In addition, since the inception of the System Board Development Forum in April
2021 and the formation of the Shadow System Board in July 2021 this has been a
key partnership forum to support the development of the model, receiving regular
updates in terms of national guidance and information from Greater Manchester. The
below summarises key discussions:
September 2021:





Locality Plan refresh, taking account of the impact of the pandemic
The Local Care organisation business plan
Our locality response to six key questions from Greater Manchester which
formed the basis of our operating model
The establishment of the more formal Shadow System Board including:
o High level terms of reference
o Membership (note this will be reviewed for formal establishment of the
System Board)
o The requirement to retain the ICB as the formal decision making body
until the formal establishment of the System Board (now likely to be
July 2022)
o Agreement to recruit to an Independent Chair for the Shadow System
Board and ICB

November 2021:

Page 14



Update on the development of “whole system neighbourhoods” which resulted
in four recommendations being supported:
o The use of “neighbourhoods” as our common language across the
system
o the direction of travel to 5 co-terminous neighbourhoods taking a
phased approach
o the establishment of Neighbourhood Boards
o agree Graphnet as the system through which all health and care
records can be accessed by clinical and professional teams for direct
patient care.

January 2022:





Received an update on the Adult Social Care White Paper
A discussion paper from Northern Care Alliance which presented a shared
statement of intent and commitment for our acute and community health care
provider to collaborate across Rochdale, Bury, Oldham and Salford
An update the Place Development Programme, starting in April 2022.
Rochdale has been selected to participate in a Place Development
Programme, funded by NHS England and Improvement (NHSE/I) and
delivered in collaboration with the Local Government Association (LGA). The
aim in all 42 ICSs across the country is to support the acceleration of one
‘place’ within that geography, and Greater Manchester ICS has chosen
Rochdale to be the local accelerator site.

February 2022:




Early draft of a discussion paper from Pennine Care Foundation Trust setting
out how it wishes to develop collaborative arrangements for planning design
and delivery of Mental Health Services
Further update on the neighbourhoods development work and seeking
support for the following:
o The high level functions of neighbourhoods boards (acknowledging
boards need to be coproduced with each neighbourhood)
o A phased approach to co-terminosity, using Heywood as a starting
point for the development of a fully co-terminous approach
o To support the approach for the development of a system clinical and
professional forum

4.5 Rochdale System Board
Our Shadow System Board has been in place since July 2021, with strong political,
non-executive and clinical leadership. This board will act as the Place Based
Partnership Committee (Locality Board) as set out in the GM Place-Based
Accountability Framework and is expected to be be fully operational, with
delegations, by 1st July 2022.

Page 15

The functions of the Shadow System Board are outlined below:






Set the strategic direction for the Borough, ensuring the ‘triple aim’, improving
outcomes, improving experience and improving efficiency is embedded
across the system
Operate as the strategic interface into the Greater Manchester Integrated
Care System (ICS), regional and national systems.
Be accountable for the pooled budget and have shared oversight of the
Rochdale pound to ensure the most effective use of public resources.
Hold the system to account for delivery of Health and Care provision for the
Borough to ensure delivery of agreed outcomes and delivery of statutory
functions.

Current membership includes the Leader of the Council, Deputy Leader and Cabinet
Member for Health, Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate, Cabinet Member for
Adult Care and Wellbeing and Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and
Education. Shadow System Board membership will continue to be refined as the
board develops and expectations in relation to scheme of delegation and
accountabilities are clearer.
An Independent Chair for the Shadow System Board, Raj Jain, has been appointed
to take the Board from shadow form to fully established by 1 July 2022 and beyond.
This aligns to the requirement of the GM Accountability Framework. Options for the
constitution of the fully established system board.
During the shadow phase of the System Board, the ICB continues to be the joint
decision making body for health and care. These arrangements will remain in place
until the formal establishment of the System Board in July 2022.

Page 16

Figure 2: Overview of locality governance arrangements to support Operating Model
Primary Care
Commissioning
Committee

GM ICS/CCG

System Board
(incorporating
H&WBB)
Quality and Safety
Committee

Finance,
Performance and
Risk Group

People and Place
Partnership

Workforce Group

Local Care
Organisation Board
(LCO)

Neighbourhood
1

Neighbourhood
2

Neighbourhood
3

Neighbourhood
4

Neighbourhood
5

Engagement, Equality and Cohesion

Safeguarding
Childrens
Partnership
Safeguarding
Adults Board
Community Safety
Partnership

Council Cabinet

Clinical and Professional Leadership

Overview and
Scrutiny

Neighbourhood
6

Key
Communications

4.6

Information
Technology

Estates

Bridging Team

Strategic
Intelligence

Finance

Strategic

Delivery

Place Lead

A role profile for the place lead, set out in the GM accountability framework, outlines
the expected role and responsibility within localities. This includes requirement for
driving the local integration of health and social care and connecting that to wider
public services to address the social determinants of health, with purpose of
improving health outcomes, improving quality of care, reducing inequalities and
maximising the value of public resources.
It is expected that each locality will have a delegated budget to utilise within the
place which will be the overall budget for ICS locality staffing.
Localities will be entitled to nominate their place lead in line with legislation and the
nationally published design principles. Consideration will also be given to the
operating models agreed within each locality.
Rochdale system are supportive of the proposals for the place lead and the
responsibilities outlined in the role profile, which are well aligned to our
Operating Model.
4.6 Local Care Organisation (LCO)
The LCO will operate as the place based provider partnership within Rochdale and
function as the locality ‘Delivery Board’. The Terms of Reference for the LCO Board
and supporting partnership agreement will be updated to reflect this role and
associated responsibilities.

Page 17

Enabler

The purpose of the LCO is to design and deliver services to improve outcomes for
the population of Rochdale. LCO providers have come together to develop a
Business plan, currently being refreshed for 2022/23, which sets out how it will
deliver the outcomes as set out in the Locality Plan refresh. The business plan
describes how providers in Rochdale will come together to deliver key priorities in
urgent and planned care, children’s urgent care, mental health, primary care and
neighbourhoods. The LCO are keen to ensure that the Health, Schools and Care
Overview and Scrutiny Committee are fully informed re progress against delivery
against the business plan and would welcome the opportunity to provide a quarterly
update.
The impact of providers coming together supports the collaborative design and
delivery of services to meet the needs of the service user, removing silos and
wrapping appropriate care around the individual rather than individuals having to
navigate confusing services themselves. The case study below provides an example
of what can be achieved when providers come together, resulting in improved
outcomes and experience for the patient, and more effective service delivery.

4.8 Neighbourhoods
Fundamental to the transformation of services and addressing health inequalities is
the development of our whole system neighbourhood approach. The publishing of
Marmot Review in July 2021 has highlighted the significant health inequalities
experienced by Greater Manchester residents. A key headline from the report states
that individuals in the most deprived areas not only have shorter lives but spend
more time in ill-health. Rochdale is in the top 20 most deprived local authorities in the
country (English Indices of Deprivation, 2019). As the borough works to recover
following covid-19 and considers the improvement work needed to address health
inequalities, prioritising and progressing the neighbourhood model is crucial.

Page 18

Our “whole system neighbourhood” is defined in the figure 4 below.

We are working to ensure that our neighbourhoods are as geographically aligned as
possible across health and care, children’s and wider determinants. Conversations
have started to take place with lead members to ensure full engagement with our
neighbourhoods development programme.
4.9 Clinical and Professional Leadership
Work is ongoing to develop our locality clinical and professional leadership model
under four key work streams:






Mapping of clinical and professional resource across the system, including
developing support forums and testing out how this could work in our
neighbourhood model
Quality and Safety across system
Clinical governance and accountability
Clinical and professional expertise into our locality construct (including
development of the new clinical and professional forum).

For Further Information Contact:

Claire Richardson,
Director of Strategic Commissioning
(DASS)
01706 924023
claire.richardson@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio Adult Care and
Wellbeing
Report Author

16th March 2022
Martin Lawton – Assistant
Director, Adult Social Care
Operations

Public Document

Market Oversight Report Q1 - Q3 2021/22
Executive Summary
1.1

The Adult Care Service commissions external provider services to deliver
a range of care services to adults with eligible social care needs. The
Adult Care commissioning team assures the quality of these services.

1.2

The Committee has requested quarterly updates on quality assurance
information for the services commissioned by the Adult Care service.
Appendix 1 of this report provides this information for quarter one to three
in 2021/22 (March – December 21).
Recommendation

2.1

That the committee consider the content of the Market Oversight report.
Reason for Recommendation

3.1

The Adult Care Service commissions external provider services to deliver
a range of care services to adults with eligible social care needs. The
Adult Care commissioning team assures the quality of these services. The
market oversight report presents quality assurance information for quarter
one to three of 2021/22 for the committee to scrutinise.
Key Points for Consideration

The information provided in the appendix to the report demonstrates the range of
commissioning activity across the borough for Quarter 1-3 2021/22 (March –
December 2021), including:
• Quality Assurance Monitoring
• CQC Ratings
• Market Oversight and the impact of Covid 19 pandemic

Page 20

• NW ADASS update
The appendix to the report provides detailed information on quality assurance for
adult care commissioned services. It is important to note that the approach to quality
assurance is that we concentrate on homes that have ‘Requires Improvement’ or
‘Inadequate’ ratings in any of the five domains (Safe, Effective, Responsive, Caring
and Well Led), with a particular focus on safe and well led.
The report details outcomes of CQC inspections for commissioned services
combined with non-commissioned services that sit within our borough. The overall
position at the end of quarter three in relation to 53 care home providers is:
1 (2%) was rated as outstanding, 41 (77%) were rated as good, 8 (15%) were rated
as requiring improvement, 2 (4%) were rated as inadequate, and an additional 1
(2%) provider was yet to be inspected.
Adult Care Services are working closely with providers to improve the quality of care
services. It has been difficult in the past two years with the pandemic and we have
seen a decline in the quality of our ratings in some service areas however this must
also be put into the context of a significantly lower number of inspections completed,
we have a recovery plan including the recruitment of more quality assurance posts
and we would request that the committee notes the significant challenges that our
providers have been managing.
Costs and Budget Summary
5.1 There are no financial implications relating to this report.
Risk and Policy Implications
6.1 Any risks associated with this are managed by the Adult Care
commissioning team who work with the provider to improve the quality of
the services.
For Further Information Contact:

Martin Lawton
martin.lawton@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 927064

Page 21

Page 22

Market Oversight
Report
Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

CONTENTS
Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inspections and Ratings
1.1		 Inspections in borough
1.2 Out of borough inspections

2
2
3

2.

Quality Assurance Monitoring
2.1 Residential social care
2.2 Community based adult social care

3
3
5

3.

Escalation Plan and Accountability Framework – multi-agency concern

6

4.

Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment – Covid-19
4.1 Residential social care
4.2 Community based adult social care

7
7
7

5.

Market oversight and the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic

7

6.

North West ADASS Monthly CQC Data Update
6.1 Benchmarking
6.2 Inspections completed across Greater Manchester

8
8
9

Page 23

1.

Covid-19 pandemic response. A snapshot

1 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

10

rochdale.gov.uk

1. Care Quality Commission (CQC) Inspections and Ratings
1.1 Inspections in borough
Over the course of the pandemic, CQC have taken a different
approach to inspection and as a result, we have seen a
reduction in the amount of services that have been inspected
since March 2020. A significant difference includes “focused
inspections”, defined by CQC as:
	
in scale than comprehensive inspections, although
• Smaller
follow a similar process
• Focussed inspections are carried out for two reasons:

Page 24

• To look at something CQC are concerned about, which
might have been raised during a comprehensive
inspection or through monitoring work.
• 	If there is a change in a care provider’s circumstances
(i.e. involved in a takeover, a merger or an acquisition)

During 2020/21, CQC inspected 8 services; ma jority were
focused inspections which reduced the inspection to either
two or three KLOEs (i.e. safe / well led). During this time,
a ma jority of care homes were inspected under Covid-19
Infection Prevention and Control to ensure people were being
kept safe during the pandemic.
During Q1, CQC undertook two targeted inspections; one
domiciliary care agency and one care home. Both inspections
scored an overall rating of requires improvement. At each
of the services, inspectors looked at safe, responsive and
well led.
During Q2/3, CQC undertook nine inspections; of these three
were full inspections, which rated each of the five domains,
safe, effective, caring, responsive and well-led.

	 focused inspection does not always look at all five of our
• A
key questions.

2 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

1.2 Out of borough inspections
Out of borough
Outstanding

Rating
1

Good

10

Requires improvement

11

Inadequate

3

Of the services currently commissioned as out of borough residential social
care placements, 25 services were inspected by CQC between April 2021 and
December 2021.
• Quarter 1 – 5 • Quarter 2 – 16 • Quarter 3 – 4

Adult care teams and commissioning contract managers have been working with those identified as inadequate:
1. Brockholes Brow – Preston

2. Asquith Hall

3. Whitwood House

• Ongoing host authority action plan
• Recent reviews of service user
• Contract manager involvement

• Ongoing host authority action plan
• Recent reviews of service user(s)|
• Contract manager involvement

•	One service user, reviewed and
alternate placement being sought

Page 25

2. Quality Assurance Monitoring
2.1 Residential social care
Towards the end of Q4 2020 / 21 and as lockdown restrictions
began to ease, quality assurance officers returned to some
‘business as usual’ activities within the commissioning team.
This involves both announced and unannounced monitoring of
registered services within the local authority.
• Quarter 1 – 92 • Quarter 2 – 62 • Quarter 3 – 64

3 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

Ma jority of monitoring visits were undertaken within residential
social care. Notably, care homes have faced the highest risk
during the pandemic, and based on risk analysis these services
have formed the bulk of quality assurance work.
Monitoring by
quarter

Outstanding

Good

Requires
improvement

Inadequate

Q1

2

64

11

2

Q2

2

42

10

7

Q3

2

41

11

7

Cumulative total

6

147

31

16

Quality assurance has been reactive during the pandemic and
as a result monitoring of services has relied on partnership
working, including via CQC and the local authority’s adult
social care teams. As a result, more frequent monitoring of
services has not always corresponded to CQC rating as per
pre-pandemic.
During an identified Covid-19 outbreak, routine visits to care
homes must also cease in line with infection, prevention and
control measures; this has affected monitoring visits during all
quarters in 2021/22.

Page 26

At the end of Q3, there were eight care homes rated requires
improvement, however some of these services are now
overdue for re-inspection by CQC and have made changes to
their services in a positive manner. Some of these services are
identified as lower risk.

Name of service

Rating

Visits

CQC rating publication

Archmoor Care Home

Requires improvement

4

17/03/2020

Beechwood Lodge

Requires improvement

2

04/02/2020

Carders Court Care Home

Requires improvement

3

24/02/2021

Clare Mount

Inadequate

5

25/12/2021

Lyndhurst Residential Care Home

Requires improvement

5

03/09/2019

Meadowview Care Home

Requires improvement

6

29/03/2019

Meavy View Retirement Home

Requires improvement

3

27/11/2020

Mona Cliffe Care Home

Requires improvement

3

07/09/2019

Oaklands House

Requires improvement

9

08/09/2021

Smithy Bridge Court

Inadequate

7

16/12/2021

4 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

The following is a snap shot of monitoring visits conducted at homes rated good by CQC. This includes services who have
received over five monitoring visits during Q1 – Q3. Some services will have received higher volumes of visits for varying factors
including, but not limited to:
• New registered management or proprietors
• Multi-agency concerns
• Change of statement of purpose
• Safeguarding concerns

• Environmental
	
health and infection
prevention and control
• Complaints, and
• Emerging quality assurance concerns.

2.2 Community based adult social care

Page 27

During April 2021 to December 2021, there have been 40 visits to
providers who
are primarily registered with CQC as a community based adult social
care service, which includes domiciliary care, supported living, shared
lives and extra
care etc.
Reactive and proactive monitoring identified concerns with two
domiciliary services, primarily; in both services, standards have since
improved.

5 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

3.	Escalation Plan and Accountability Framework - multi-agency concern
During 2021/22, there has been an increase in providers
meeting the Escalation Plan and Accountability Framework’s
threshold for multi-agency concern. This is in part due to the
decreased monitoring by quality assurance teams as well as
decreased inspection by CQC. Concerns have likely increased
due to the additional pressures faced by the social care
sector during the pandemic.
In 2020/21 there were 11 providers who reached this threshold.
Between Q1 to Q3 2021/22, this has increased to 14.

Page 28

Multi-agency concerns meetings are facilitated by
commissioning: including key partners such as CQC, CCG,
CHC and adult social care teams.
Key themes include:
Service area

Concerns / Comments

Joint approach

Partners

Residential / Nursing

Retaining staff / quality concerns
/ de-registration of nursing

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC / other LA

Residential / Nursing

Medication incident / poor recording /
potential delay to medical treatment

Strategy meeting

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC

Residential / Nursing

Poor staffing / whistle –blowing allegations
of poor nursing practice and delay to
reporting concerns

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC / other LA

Residential / Nursing

Poor pressure area care / training
/documentation

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC

Residential / Nursing

Safeguarding allegation / police
involvement

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care commissioning
/ CQC / CCG / CHC / police / MA

Residential / Nursing

Staffing levels and reporting of concerns

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC / other LA

Learning Disability

Poor quality of personal behaviour plans

Multi-agency concern

Adult social care / adult social care
commissioning / CQC / CCG / CHC

6 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

4. Vaccination as a Condition of Deployment – Covid-19
4.1 Residential social care
Vaccination as a condition of deployment has been a key
focus during Q2 and Q3 of 2021/22. In July 2021, government
passed legislation to make vaccination mandatory for all
staffing working in care homes. The regulations came into
force on 11 November 2021.

Page 29

Commissioning quality assurance teams held some
responsibility to produce impact statements as well as
analysis data available. During the grace period from July
20221 to November 2021, a significant amount of work was
completed to ensure that all staff willing to be vaccinated
received both doses by 10 November to continue their
employment. Largely this was considered successful, with
relatively small numbers of staff reported as leaving their
employment.

Currently, over 98% of care staff in care homes are double
vaccinated, with the remaining two-percent either medically
exempt or not currently working. Quality monitoring includes
checking these records.

4.2 Community based adult social care
During December 2021, legislation was passed to make
vaccination mandatory in the wider health and social
care sector. Initially the deadline for first vaccination
against Covid-19 was set for February 2022, however due
to the change in response to the new Omicron variant;
the government opened a consultation about mandatory
vaccination and its validity in health and social care.
The consultation will close on 16 February 2022.

5. Market oversight and the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic
The approach to quality monitoring was adjusted to ensure
that visits were only carried out when it was safe to do so.
During national and regional lockdowns in both 2020 and
2021, the amount of quality monitoring decreased.

• In person questionnaires

Due to decreased visits from family and service users
representative, it has been more challenging to collect the
views of services uses within adult social care.

• Surveys

Over the next quarter and leading into 2022/23 financial year,
new initiatives as well as a return to usual collection methods
is likely to return to pre-pandemic levels, which will ensure
views are captured in a sustainable manner, including:

7 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

• Telephone questionnaires
• Client portal
• Online surveys
Where complaints have been raised, quality monitoring is
directed to ensure that actions and improvements have
occurred via lessons learned.

rochdale.gov.uk

6. North West ADASS Monthly CQC Data Update
6.1 Benchmarking
Each month North West ADASS provides a benchmarking
dashboard of adult social care services across the region.
This gives an opportunity to compare across Greater
Manchester as well as the wider North West of England.
At the end of Q3, Rochdale’s total good and outstanding beds
within the borough is joint lowest within Greater Manchester,
however is higher than the average in some areas of the
North West as a whole.

NW ADASS report that CQCs approach is to inspect via “risk”:
they expect to continue to see a decrease in ratings as a
whole.
In Rochdale, we have actively worked with local inspectors
where risks have been identified and are likely to have
influenced inspection during April to December 2021.

Page 30
8 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

6.2 Inspections completed across Greater Manchester
A smaller number of providers have been inspected in Rochdale, compared to some other local authorities in Greater
Manchester, which may affect overall position within GM.
Q1 – 3 2021/22

Page 31

The following compares awarded CQC ratings against total inspections completed for each local authority:
Q1 – 3 2021/22

9 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

Covid-19 pandemic response. A snapshot
Throughout the pandemic the commissioning team
has supported the care sector, regularly providing
information, help.
The team has:
•	
Delivered over 120 provider briefings across the sector
•	
Released funding to support cash flow and maintain
staffing levels
•	
Ensured the sector was supplied with PPE

And. ..
Throughout the pandemic, our councillors undertook
regular outdoor visits to care homes to thanks staff
for their hard work and chat with them about the
covid response. These included:
•	
Half Acre House
•	
Littleborough Lakeside
•	
Oakland Care Home
•	
Leighton House

Page 32

•	
Supported care settings, by covering the cost of void
spaces when closed to an outbreak
•	
Supported care workers with accommodation, to ensure
they could protect their families and still be available
for work
•	
Daily calls offering support to all settings
•	
Twice weekly webinars
•	
A hotline for direct support and advice
•	
Set up the virtual hospital
•	
Provided the care sector with Ipads to help carry out
observations and training
•	
Delivered fit testing across the system
•	
Provided testing kits and regular testing advice
•	
Secured increased infection control funding after a
councillor led campaign

10 Market Oversight Report • Quarter 1-3 • 2021-22

rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda Item 8
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

16th March 2022
Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services and
Education, Cabinet
Member for Health,
Cabinet Member for Adult
Care and Wellbeing
Ben Jorgensen

Adult, Children & Public Health Directorate Plans 2021-22:
Quarter 3 Performance Update
Executive Summary
1.

To report progress at the end of Quarter 3 (1st October – 31st December
2021) towards achievement of the targets contained in the Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2021-22, Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 and
Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22.
Recommendation

2.

Members are asked to review the information contained within the report
and the appendices.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

In accordance with the Council’s performance management framework,
progress toward targets contained within Directorate Plans are to be
reported to relevant Overview & Scrutiny Committees at the end of each
quarter.

3.1

The Quarter 3 progress reports for the Adult Care Directorate, Children’s
Services and Public Health Directorate are attached at Appendix 1, 2 and 3
respectively. Actions within each appendix have been colour coded in
accordance with the following criteria:

3.2

Red: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the target
date
Amber: Action not fully completed or not on track to be completed by the
target date due to circumstances outside of the directorate’s control
Green: Action completed by the target date
Purple: Action is not yet due for completion but is currently on track

Page 33

The appendix includes a commentary against actions that are showing red,
amber or purple.
Key Points for Consideration
4.

Adult Care Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.1

67% (8) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are ongoing.
25% (3) actions are now complete. One further action has not been
complete and the due date has now passed. The chart below shows the
overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the end
of Quarter 3.

4.2

The action that isn’t fully complete and the due date has passed (Amber)
relates to:
 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health
and social care) of people with complex issues around autism and
learning difficulties.
Quarter 3 Summary

4.3

As part of the action to support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood
working it was agreed to establish four co -located Integrated
Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams. Currently there has
been some challenges with one of the estates, which has delayed progress.
It is now expected that 4 teams will be co-located by August 2022.Work is
still ongoing With Pennine Care to implement a neighbourhood offer around
MH service provision, the living well design group is now in place and we
are currently recruiting for lead roles. There is a need to engage in public

Page 34

consultation exercise around aspects of neighbourhood working. This
unfortunately has been delayed due to the effects of the pandemic although
it is hoped that the consultation events will be attempted by the end of the
financial year.
4.4

In order to publish and enact a new Scheme of Delegation a large scale
review of service protocols, guidance and procedures is due to commence.
This can only take place once the constitution of the Council is reviewed.
This piece of work is being led by Committee and Constitutional Services.

4.5

The development of a plan to modernise community mental health services
has been completed. The mental health mandate provides a high level plan
and includes specific sections on crisis development, dementia and
community mental health transformation. Work is progressing regarding the
development of a project plan for the community mental health national
framework to be implemented in conjunction with commissioning. There has
been some recruitment to structured clinical roles and PCN roles with the
programme of work. This is being led by Pennine care and overseen by
CCG mental health commissioning.

4.6

Work has been paused, due to the impact of the pandemic, in regards to the
working towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social
care) of people with complex issues around autism and learning difficulties.
Oversight of this work will continue through CCG commissioning in
partnership with adult care going forward.
Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview

4.7

63% (10) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2021-22 are
ongoing. 25% (4) actions are now complete. Two actions are not fully
complete and the action due date has now passed. The chart below shows
the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the
end of Quarter 3.

Page 35

4.8

The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy
that incorporates School Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy
and wider council prevention strategy
 Digitisation of Early Years communication and language
assessments
Quarter 3 Summary

4.9

The action to review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to
ensure effective transitions and support with EHASH, locality partners and
Children’s Social Care has now been completed. The locality team pathway
has been developed and shared within the service guide. Locality
governance and family resource panels are established and underway.
Localities Pathway document embedded in service guide and shared.
Review planned for April 2022.

4.10 The implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational
Needs/ Disabilities) reforms is ongoing. As part of the sub-action to develop
the integrated SEND alliance offer, the SEND mandate has been signed off
by LCO Executive Board. The SEND Charter is to be signed off in Q4 with
revised governance agreed to launch in Q4. The SEND JSNA has now been
completed with an action plan in development. The five year SEND Strategy
(2022-27) will launch at a planned event on the 1st of February. Outcomes
Framework and indicators have been agreed with a dashboard and quality
assurance framework to be developed in Q4. The development of the
Preparing for Adulthood/Transition strategy is ongoing. Training has taken
place in November with team specific training to commence in 2022 (date to
be confirmed). The transition policy is due to be completed in Feb 2022 with
joint pathway processes with Adult and Children's social care set for 7th Jan
to feed into the policy.
4.11 Member of Youth Parliament candidates have now been selected for
Heywood/Middleton and Rochdale Pennines. The cross borough elections
are to be held in January. The care experienced group has been established
in partnership with the C4C team. The Student Relationship Champion
Programme has been launched in May 2021.
4.12 The action for workforce stability to be maintained and strengthened is
progressing well. In order to embed and further develop mechanisms to
ensure that staff at every level in the organisation influence strategy and
practice standards, revised management meeting arrangements have been
established increasing the communication between the wider leadership
team. The new approach to recruitment has attracted an increased number
of applications to join the workforce in Rochdale and revised approaches to
interviewing are increasing the speed at which we are able to recruit whilst
maintaining safe recruitment practices and ensuring quality. There continues
to be more to do in ensuring that Rochdale in an employer of choice.

Page 36

Public Health & Wellbeing Directorate Plan 2021-22 Progress
Performance Overview
4.13 60% (9) of the actions included in the Directorate Plan 2020-21 are ongoing.
20% (3) actions are now complete. Three further actions are not fully
complete and the action due date has now passed. The chart below shows
the overall performance of the Directorate in meeting its plan targets at the
end of Quarter 3.

Quarter 1 Summary
4.14 The actions that aren’t fully complete and the due dates have passed
(Amber) relate to:
 Develop Intelligence Network to support strategic and tactical
intelligence requirements within new system architecture
 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for Public Health in
the context of the Integration and Innovation, and Public Health
Proposals expected in due course
4.15 Excellent progress has been made regarding the action to develop an
Intelligence Network to support strategic and tactical intelligence
requirements within new system architecture. It has been agreed to roll out a
system for neighbourhood intelligence that will be providing neighbourhood
level intelligence support. Neighbourhood intelligence packs should be
available by April 1st. Work plans continue to be developed to meet the
requirements of the LCO and future neighbourhood working. Several
dashboards for the LCO linked to their mandates have been completed so
far. However there is scope to improve on this incrementally as need
dictates.
4.16 The action to lead on the development and implementation of a system wide
all-age prevention strategy is 90% complete. Prevention and Neighbourhood
Boards are continuing to meet and oversee strategy and work stream

Page 37

progress as well as overarching implementation across the system. The
Board is being reconfigured in Q4 due to a number of Board members
leaving the council. In order to develop system wide
procurement/development plans a contract has been awarded for the
specialist health improvement tender. Other elements of prevention offer are
also progressing e.g. specialist physical activity offer.
4.17 The finalisation of the partnership agreement between RBC and Link4Life is
ongoing. A performance framework has now been agreed and embedded as
part of performance monitoring processes. The VEAT notice has now been
complete allowing award of partnership agreement. Service specification
and contract are nearing completion. Sign off will be completed in Q4.
4.18 The effective implementation of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme is
progressing. The booster surge programme was successful during
December however, inequalities continue to be a challenge across all
elements of programme. An intensive programme of work is underway to
work to address this. Workshops to define activity in 6 priority areas are
complete, interventions co-designed with partners and work is ongoing.
Workshop for pregnancy, boosters and clinically extremely vulnerable/at risk
have also taken place, mobilisation in progress. Winter messages have
been designed and shared with partners for wider dissemination through
networks. A large number of surge clinics have been stepped up over
December and will continue throughout January, these have been at various
locations across the borough, including our 6 priority areas.
4.19 The COVID Community testing programme is currently continuing until the
end of March. Since the emergence of Omicron there has been huge
pressure on testing, both PCR and LFD. Rochdale has kept three FAST
sites and its roving team which has helped during this time. Issues with PCR
testing are linked to lab capacity and appears to be easing. We have had
assurance from DHSC that LFD stock will improve from week commencing
10th January. The situation in Rochdale is monitored on a daily basis. The
plan for Jan-Mar has been agreed and is in operation. We await further info
from DHSC about testing post March, prior to Omicron we had worked up an
exit strategy which could be adapted, this will include what testing Rochdale
may want to maintain despite DHSC plans.
Alternatives Considered
4.20 Not applicable

Costs and Budget Summary
5.

None
Risk and Policy Implications

Page 38

6.

None

Consultation
7.

Not required
Background Papers

8.

Place of Inspection

Appendix 1 - Adult Care
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q3

Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale OL16 1XU

Appendix 2 – Children’s
Services Directorate Plan 202122 Q3
Appendix 3 – Public Health
Directorate Plan 2021-22 Q3

For Further Information Contact:

Ben Jorgensen, ,
ben.jorgensen@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 39

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

AC2101 Support the delivery of integrated neighbourhood working

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

AC2101.A

To further develop a partnership approach and work to a set of guiding principles which evidence
good neighbourhood working (complete actions in Project plan LCO exec group project sponsors)

Status

% Complete

51%

% Complete

31 March 2022



80%

31 March 2022



50%

Work continues.
AC2101.B

To have four co -located Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) /Neighbourhood teams

There has been some challenges with one of the estates, which has delayed progress. It is now expected that 4 teams will be co-located by August 2022.

Page 40

To initialise formal links with Primary Care Networks and housing

AC2101.D

With Pennine Care to implement a neighbourhood offer around MH service provision (found in
Neighbourhood LCO project)

AC2101.C

31 March 2022



40%

31 March 2022



50%

31 March 2022



35%

Work is still ongoing.

Work is still ongoing, we have the living well design group in place and we are currently recruiting for lead roles.
AC2101.E

Engage in at least 1 public consultation exercise around aspects of neighbourhood working in each
neighbourhood (contained in team plans)

Due to the current AC2011 engagement, due to the escalation in the current pandemic, there may be some delay in finalise consultation events, they will still be
attempted by the end of the financial year.

AC2102 Undertake (with other directorates) test of change for new prevention model for vulnerable
adults

31 March 2022



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 7

63%

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



100%

30 September 2021



90%

31 March 2022



0%

AC2103 Publish and enact new Scheme of Delegation, in line with the corporate constitution, financial
regulations and standing orders

31 March 2022



90%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2103.A

Review and embed within all service protocols, guidance and procedures

31 March 2022



AC2101.A

Start test of change – new model tested

% Complete

This has begun and the programme of work complete has been enacted
AC2101.B

Review test of change

Paper agreed at leadership, consultation documentation being drawn up for implementation.
AC2101.C

Implement new model

Implementation due 1st April 2022.

Page 41

% Complete
90%

This still remains the same as Q2. A larger scale review will then commence once the constitution of the council is reviewed. This piece of work is being led by
Committee and Constitutional Services.

AC2104 Community Mental Health national framework to be implemented In conjunction with
commissioning (monitored via Mental Health partnership board and LCO mandate

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2104.A

Develop a plan to modernise community mental health services

30 April 2021



53%

% Complete
100%

Mental health mandate provides a high level plan and includes specific sections on crisis development, dementia and community mental health transformation
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 7

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

AC2104.B

Develop the project plan

Due Date

Status

31 October 2021



% Complete

60%

This work is progressing, there has been some recruitment to structured clinical roles and PCN roles with the programme of work. This is being led by Pennine care
overseen by CCG mental health commissioning.
AC2104.C

Review against framework

31 March 2022



0%

31 Mach 2022



53%

Mental Health work mandate stood down whilst dealing with current wave in the pandemic.

AC2105 Dementia action plan to comply with GM dementia standards

Page 42

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

AC2105.A

Baseline audit

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



60%

Ongoing piece of work linked to dementia united
AC2105.B

Review against standards

We are working towards a deadline for the end of March 2022 to draw up a dementia strategy for Rochdale. Where we will take into account the GM standards.

AC2105.C

Review against framework

28 February 2022



0%

31 March 2022



20%

To be actioned in Q4

AC2106 Prepare the locality and all partners for the implementation of Protection of Liberty
safeguards and review against preparedness
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 7

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2106.A

Audit of stakeholder preparedness

30 April 2021



% Complete

% Complete
20%

Formal government announcement w/c 20.12.21 that LPS will not be implemented in Apr 22. Code of Practice due to be published in spring 22 for a 6 month
consultation. No date given for LPS implementation so due date no longer valid. AP has been given additional responsibilities to lead.



40%

31 January 2022



0%

AC2107 To work towards a new approach to the joint management (health and social care) of people
with complex issues around autism and Learning difficulties

30 September 2021



25%

Ref.

Due

Status

30 September 2021



25%

100%

AC2106.B

Implementation plan

30 June 2021

As above, Code of practice still not published. Scoping exercise on resources needed completed- option paper going to SMT on 12.01.22
AC2106.C

Audit and report

Legislation start postponed. This action therefore delayed until Code of Practice published.

Page 43

AC2107.A

Name
In conjunction with commissioners and Pennine care Foundation Trust build on work in 2020 to
deliver a new assessment, treatment & intervention model for this specific group of people

% Complete

Work paused due to impact of pandemic, oversight of this work will continue through CCG commissioning in partnership with adult care.

AC2108 Using intelligence from the market position statement, accommodation panel create and
publish clear commissioning intentions for ASC accommodation requirements 2021-2024

31 May 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2108.A

Finalise neighbourhood data modelling for the care market to include RAG ratings linked to an
assessment of risk, based on quality; strategic importance of the setting and sufficiency needs.

30 April 2021



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 7

% Complete
100%

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Define and agree accommodation commissioning intentions aligned to ASC MPS and corporate plan

31 May 2021



100%

Mobilise new developments pathway and panel (including those to be commissioned)

31 May 2021



100%

AC2109 Develop, in partnership, a quality standard for non CQC registered accommodation with
support.

31 May 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2109.A

Research quality standard across England, and consultation with key providers.

30 April 2021



100%

Draft quality standard and business case for implementation

31 May 2021



100%

AC2110 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for the introduction of a CQC assurance
framework for LA’s against Adult care duties and delivery of ASC in the context of the integration and
innovation white paper.

31 March 2021



84%

Ref.

Due

Status

Completed
AC2108.B
Completed
AC2108.C
Completed

Page 44

% Complete

Completed
AC2109.B
Completed

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 7

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

AC2110.A

Participate in the Client Level Data set(CLD) pilot and inform the national developments of the
national dashboard and assurance framework

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

100%

Attendance and engagement at national and GM-wide meetings. Currently looking at the IG surrounding the legal justification for GM collating and analysing the data
on behalf of the local authorities. ICT colleagues are on standby ready to build the relevant databases once the data points have been determined by GM.
AC2110.B

Work with the care market to ensure ongoing capacity to meet national data submission
requirements including for self-funders

31 March 2022



100%

Providers currently updating as required nationally, future changes likely in Q3 and Q4- ongoing. 100% on current requirements. Expectation is further national
requirements in Q4. No change publication of white paper for ASC received in December, reviewing implications for review in the market.
Lead the coordination and submission of the client level dataset pilot including reporting, data
31 March 2022

65%
quality and information governance requirements to enable monthly submission of NHSD
IG colleagues involved in the review and DPIA documents required to enable this to progress through GM. Database is being developed in preparation but no data can
be released until governance requirements are satisfied.
AC2110.C

Page 45

AC2110.D

Review of workforce capacity against standards and care act duties for both operations and
commissioning

30 June 2021



100%

30 September 2021



90%

Work has been done on Workforce capacity and will form part of the medium term financial plan.
AC2110.E

Develop a ASC medium term financial strategy

MTF plan agreed in Nov budget report to cabinet. Monthly meetings with finance will follow. Publication for white paper in ASC on Dec 2021 currently being reviewed
further implications being accepted.
Have due regard to the legislative framework for ICS’ and secure closer integration of health and
care via a MOU.

30 June 2021



50%

AC2111 To define our commissioning intentions to deliver improved housing with support options for
both older and younger adults

31 March 2021



96%

Ref.

Due

Status

AC2110.F

Ongoing, implementation of ITS is delayed until July 2022.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 7

% Complete

Adult Social Care Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



90%

Set out our Covid recovery strategy to meet the needs of older people requiring 24/7 care: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

Refresh our ‘Living Well’ strategy promoting an asset based approach to community living: Refresh
our 2020 market position statement

31 July 2021



100%

AC2112 Standardise and automate our contract management functions

31 May 2021



100%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

AC2112.A

Strengthen our approach to tactical commissioning: Build on the outcome of the 2021 pilot
programme

31 May 2021



AC2111.A

Review, personalise and improve our supported living offer: Improvement plan to reflect
aspirations, opportunities and resources

% Complete

Ongoing next steps to be defined in Q4.
AC2111.B
Completed
AC2111.C

Pilot completed we are now implementing the outcome.

Page 46

Recruitment will be underway in Q4 to mainstream the functions.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 7

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2101 Children and young people in our Borough will aspire and achieve a better life through access
to opportunities, learning and training

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2101.A

Develop and Implement with schools the School Improvement Recovery Strategy, building on the
Interim School Improvement Strategy

30 September 2021



% Complete

72%

% Complete
100%

The Primary Improvement strategy is being implemented consistently with priority schools. The service is working with all the maintained secondary schools where there
are concerns regarding performance and risk of decline in judgements.

CS2101.B

Work closely with the system to develop the overarching Schools Strategy and vision, with related
behaviours to strengthen: The school led system and school to school support as well as school
collaboration

30 September 2021



65%

Page 47

Consultant facilitating the vision and values work delivered a session to all primary head teachers at the Autumn term conference. Working group of primary head
teachers to work with the consultant has been identified and this work will be initiated in the Spring term. This work will be continue to be developed and embedded post
the timescales for this plan.

CS2101.C

Extend and embed the Rochdale Communication and Language project through Training and
development and support and challenge through the Early Years Foundation Stage and key stages
1 and 2.



100%

31 March 2022



65%

31 March 2022



50%

31 March 2022

All schools in the borough are now delivering evidenced based approaches to supporting communication and language in the Early years.

CS2101.D

Development and implementation of a primary and key stage 3 Reading strategy

This the project plan is at the implementation stage with identified primary and secondary schools.
CS2101.E

Ensure that all secondary schools have an effective curriculum within key stage 3 and improve the
weak areas of the English baccalaureate to ensure students are better placed for key stage 4.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Curriculum deputies are meeting regularly to progress the areas on the Pioneer's Trust annual plan in relation to the delivery of an effective curriculum in key stage 3.
Curriculum reviews have taken place in the maintained secondary settings where the LA have been concerned about the quality of education. This work will continue to
be developed and embedded post the timescales of this plan.

CS2101.F

Implement the recommendations of the Inclusion review in order to reduce exclusions

31 March 2022



50%

Curriculum deputies are meeting regularly to progress the areas on the Pioneer's Trust annual plan in relation to the delivery of an effective curriculum in key stage 3.
Curriculum reviews have taken place in the maintained secondary settings where the LA have been concerned about the quality of education. This work will continue to
be developed and embedded post the timescales of this plan.

CS2101.G

Strengthen the support and challenge to schools, education and training providers to improve the
percentages of young people who are in employment, education and training focussing
determinedly to improve outcomes for vulnerable young people.

31 March 2022



75%

Page 48

The service has maintained and delivered a commissioned service of support and guidance across the borough in schools at Post 16. We have delivered the Rochdale
Guarantee which secures an offer for all school leavers. We have secured a successful bid for a PP plus pilot for leavers with Hopwood Hall and Positive Steps. Delivery of
a Youth hub for 18-24 year olds with DWP.

CS2102 Improve access to right service at right time

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2102.A

To work across the partnership to ensure that children in our borough receive the right service at
the earliest point of need through a partnership EHASH Strategic Management Group

30 June 2021



100%

% Complete
100%

The EHASH Strategic board continues to meet on a monthly basis and is well represented by partner agencies. We have started to clinically focus upon key themes
relating to EHASH with partner agencies in order to understand the demand and areas we need to collectively improve upon. We have started to devise partnership deep
dive audit points and hold audit meetings with key partners in order to provide a transparent overview, this then is fed back down to agencies in order to address specific
areas of findings. We are collectively considering the overall improvement of service offer and delivery across the demographic as a collective partnership. The EHASH
board will continue to assist in developing and strengthening the Front Door Model of Rochdale with partners making valuable contribution to its continued journey. As
we progress in Quarter three we have already started to consider our wider approach whereas the EHASH board will in turn focus upon partner feedback and findings in
order to improve the whole system approach.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

CS2103 Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

31 July 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2103.A

Review Early Help Systems Guide submission to identify priorities and Early Help governance at a
central and locality level

30 April 2021



100%

30 June 2021



100%

31 July 2021



75%

91%

% Complete

The system guide has been completed and priorities will inform the Early Help strategy
CS2103.B

Scope and draft the new integrated strategy with relevant governance group (including Children
with Disabilities Partnership and the Prevention Board)

Page 49

Governance groups have been established with agreed TOR.
CS2103.C

Develop and implement a refreshed whole family Early Help strategy that incorporates School
Readiness and aligns to the SEND Strategy and wider council prevention strategy

Strategy work ongoing and now led by the newly recruited EHRP Strategic Lead Post. This is being developed holistically in line with the prevention strategy development
and LCO neighbourhood developments and SEND work. Timing is therefore impacted by the progress of these work streams to ensure alignment.

CS2104 Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2104.A

Review Early Help & Early Years locality team pathways to ensure effective transitions and
support with EHASH, locality partners and Children’s Social Care

30 June 2021



The locality team pathway has been developed and shared within the service guide

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 12

100%

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2104.B

Review information and advice services for multi-agency practitioners in relation to Early Help
and establish pathways with locality teams prior to EHASH

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



% Complete

100%

Locality governance and family resource panels established and underway. Localities Pathway document embedded in service guide and shared. Review planned for April
2022.

31 December 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2105.A

Finalise digitisation of WellComm Assessment with GM

30 September 2021



100%

30 September 2021



95%

31 December 2021



95%

CS2106 Establish essential parent website to support information and advice to families

28 February 2022



100%

Ref.

Due

Status

Page 50

CS2105 Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

96%

% Complete

Completed Q2.

CS2105.B

Digitisation of Early Years communication and language assessments

Awaiting legal oversight then ready to go live, staff trained.
CS2105.C

Digitised assessment live and providing collated data

Awaiting legal oversight then ready to go with Well Comm data, ASQ data already live and reportable.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 12

% Complete

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2106.A

Website established with GM and Rochdale priorities included

Due Date

Status

28 February 2022



% Complete

100%

We have been working closely with GM and the ecare team to ensure that Rochdale priorities are featured in the website. Staff will be able to send families information
related to Rochdale not just generic information.
CS2106.B

Staff trained and implementing e-care prescription element of Essential parent with families

28 February 2022



100%

All children's centre staff are now trained on the e-care and are using the system to send information to families. We have had some really positive feedback from staff
regarding how easy the system is to use and how it is reducing the time they spend collating leaflets to send to parents.
28 February 2022



100%

CS2107 Implementation and embedding of the SEND (Special Educational Needs/ Disabilities) reforms

31 March 2022



93%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2107.A

Development of the integrated SEND Alliance Offer

31 March 2022



100%



100%

CS2106.C

Website embedded in local systems including Our Rochdale

The Essential Parenting is now embedded in Our Rochdale and open to the public and practitioners.

Page 51

% Complete

SEND Mandate signed off by LCO Executive Board. SEND Charter to be signed of in Q4. Revised governance agreed to launch in Q4.

CS2107.B

Development of a Joint SEND JSNA

30 September 2021

SEND JSNA now complete. Action Plan in development.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2107.C

Collaboratively Development the Five year SEND Strategy

Due Date

Status

31 December 2021



% Complete

95%

SEND Strategy 2022-27 will launch at a planned event on the 1st of February. Outcomes Framework and Indicators agreed. Dashboard and Quality framework to be
developed in Q4.

CS2107.D

Development of the Preparing for Adulthood / Transition Strategy

30 November 2021



80%

First Preparing for adulthood /Transition training look place in November - Team specific training to commence in 2022 - just awaiting final confirmation of date Transition Policy due to be completed in Feb 2022 - Joint Pathway processes with Adult and Children's social care set for 7th Jan to feed into the policy.

Page 52

CS2108 Provide sufficient and suitable school places for all children within the Borough

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2108.A

Continually review the availability of primary and secondary school places and negotiate delivery
of new school places with schools and/or DfE.

31 March 2022



65%

% Complete
60%

First Preparing for adulthood /Transition training look place in November - Team specific training to commence in 2022 - just awaiting final confirmation of date Transition Policy due to be completed in Feb 2022 - Joint Pathway processes with Adult and Children's social care set for 7th Jan to feed into the policy.

CS2108.B

Support the DfE delivery of two planned secondary Free Schools and one Free Special School
(ASC) which are required for the Borough.

31 March 2022



50%

Middleton - Edgar Wood Academy construction project progressing well on Bowled site with completion planned for September 2022. Pennines Secondary Free School Star Academy Trust appointed with plan to self-deliver with assistance/approval from DfE. Surveys completed on site and pre-application Planning meetings undertaken.
Confirmation from DfE that September 2022 delivery is not possible it will now be 2023/24. LA is working with DfE to establish a contingency plan for the intervening
period. SEN (ASC) School - New Bridge Academy specific brief negotiated between Trust and DfE. Heads of Terms and lease agreement agreed. DfE advise that opening
date will be delayed and are anticipating 2023/34. LA is work with DfE and the Trust to establish contingency HUB for intervening period with a consultation paper to be
reviewed at Cabinet in January 2022.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2108.C

Deliver school expansions, refurbishments and capital maintenance and repair projects across the
school estate

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

85%

Wates construction progressing well with the build for the new Littleborough CPS. Majority of capital projects completed on time, those deferred due to contractor
resource and materials availability issues completed in holiday periods where scope and potential for disruption to teaching and learning allowed and remedial work
commissioned where necessary to keep buildings safe and comfortable in the interim.

CS2109 Ensure that young people have access to quality evening provision to meet identified needs

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

Page 53

Integration of Youth Programme Quality Intervention (YPQI) as quality and improvement
indicator to enhance offer for young people

31 March 2022



60%

CS2110 Ensure the voice of young people is promoted and listened to across service development and
within provision

31 March 2022



65%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2110.A

Enhance the offer of Member of Youth Parliament / Children’s Champion / Cared for
Ambassadors and increase the numbers of young people participating in voice projects

31 March 2022



CS2109.A

60%

% Complete

Quality assurance visits conducted by Lead Youth Work Managers. Peer inspections scheduled for Feb 2022.

% Complete
80%

Member of Youth Parliament candidates selected for Heywood/Middleton and Rochdale Pennines. Cross Borough elections to be held in January. Care experienced group
established in partnership with C4C team.
CS2110.B

Facilitate the Student Relationship Champions programme with schools and youth provision in
line with RBC Relationship Champion initiative.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 12

31 March 2022



50%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

CS2111 Engage and support young people at risk of serious youth violence

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2111.A

Develop strong links between detached youth work and other areas where young people are
identified at risk of SYV

31 March 2022



% Complete

Student relationship Champion Programme launched May 2021.

100%

% Complete
100%

Page 54

Further sessions added at Middleton Tech with link to youth club sessions in the evenings at Springvale Youth Centre. Links with YJT prevention officer linked to
Consequence Management Cell Multiple sessions held per week at Heywood Sports Village. Mentor sessions in Heywood.

CS2112 Workforce stability is maintained and strengthened

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2112.A

Continue to provide development opportunities for employees from black, Asian and minority
ethnic communities.

31 March 2022



95%

% Complete
100%

Targeted leadership development opportunities have been offered to colleagues from Black and minority ethnic groups. Additionally, 1 Rochdale manager is now
attending the GM leadHERship programme. In Q3 a wider BAME focus group met, with plans to meet at regular intervals, with shared leadership with a group member.
CS2112.B

Embed and further develop mechanisms to ensure that staff at every level in the organisation
influence strategy and practice standards.

31 March 2022



90%

Revised Management meeting arrangements are in place increasing the communication between the wider leadership team. Our new approach to recruitment has
attracted an increased number of applications to join the workforce in Rochdale and revised approaches to interviewing are increasing the speed at which we are able to
recruit whilst maintaining safe recruitment practices and ensuring quality. There continues to be more to do in ensuring that Rochdale in an employer of choice.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

CS2113 Ensure that children who are experiencing neglect in our borough are identified and receive
timely services to improve their lives

30 September 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2113.A

Review our approach to Neglect through the Safeguarding Partnership

31 March 2022



90%



25%

57%

% Complete

A new Neglect toolkit has been devised and is currently being consulted on, it is anticipated that this work will be complete by March 22.
CS2113.B

Develop and implement a service wide engagement strategy for young people, parents and carers

30 September 2021

Page 55

The new DCS has requested that this is all now revisited in line with more relational practice and that the whole strategy is revisited and a new participation strategy is
formulated that involves stakeholders and the young people. This work is now all required in the coming year and will be rolled into the new Directorate Plan.

CS2114 Safely stabilise the number of children in need of protection and children cared for, ensuring
children receive services through embedding innovative approaches

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2114.A

Continue to embed the locality based social work offer alongside the development of the early
help offer

31 December 2021



100%

31 March 2022



70%

82%

% Complete

Completed Q2.

CS2114.B

Fully implement and embed No Wrong Door to safely support children edging towards care to live
successfully in the community.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 12

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Numbers of children receiving an outreach continues to be compromised due to still not being fully staffed. The number receiving outreach support has decreased by 4
but a further 10 are awaiting allocation. A piece of work has been undertaken to ensure we can better identify edging towards care via CP Plans.
CS2114.C

Develop our Adolescent Safeguarding Offer incorporating the use of the ACT model to support
young people in need of help and protection

31 March 2022



75%

The ACT worker has continued to make an impact on Practice in the PRU, additional funding has been secured to continue this post for a further year. Reports are
produced for a Steering Group to evidence impact. The current post holder is moving and a new secondment is being progressed. Further work on the SHB policy with
schools, YJS and EHASH is increasingly ensuring a consistent approach. A draft proposal for the Adolescent Safeguarding Offer is being completed by 31st January 2022.
Sessions on embedding the NWD provocations have been held for CSC Heads of Service, all Practice Managers / Advanced Practitioners in Q3, as well as a session for all
Practice Managers on embedding the Deep Dive Methodology. This is all contributing to setting the culture and approach of our adolescent offer.

Page 56

CS2114.D

Complete a 2021-23 strategic youth justice partnership plan that will continue to develop a local
end to end youth justice system underpinned by child first, offender second principles &
approaches

30 September 2021



100%



65%

This has been completed and has been shared at YJ Partnership board, final draft has been sent to DCS for final sign off.
CS2114.E

Review the use of pre-proceedings to safely reduce the number of children requiring care
applications through the family courts

31 December 2021

Revised PLO9 in use. ToR for LGW, PP and Resources Panel completed and approved. TS is leading a project on development of our PP letters and documents and is our
point of contact to the regional work being done on northwest toolkit. We have not progressed the PP tracker and need to pick this up with BP and business support. It
links to a wider piece of work being done by ACDS on PP and care proceedings data. We do now have legal data in our level report.

CS2115 Secure permanence for more children, ensuring there are sufficient local placements and
choice where children need to be cared for / adopted

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2115.A

Embed our Sufficiency strategy to ensure that more children in our care live in high quality local
placements

31 March 2022



Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 12

82%

% Complete
90%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

Reliance on external placements has seen a further reduction in terms of external residential and IFA placements. A high proportions relative to our comparators are in
our own provision. Our IHF has 315 children in placement.

CS2115.B

Embed and deliver innovative approaches via Project fostering to continue restore in-house
fostering services to a position of growth. In particular implement: -Mocking Bird -PACE practice
model -Secure Base -Supported lodgings provision

31 March 2022



90%

Continued roll out of PACE and Securebase. Mockingbird Constellation 1 is now well established and functioning well with Constellation 2 now agreed and planning will
begin during Q4.
CS2115.C

Embed our revised Permanence Strategy

31 October 2021



75%

Strategy is being revised and updated - meeting arranged for 11.01.2022 with appropriate Heads of Service, AD and practice improvement manager to agree updates
required and update the action plan in line with the improvement plan.

Page 57

CS2115.D

Review our support arrangements for children subject to Special Guardianship Arrangements,
Child Arrangement Orders, Adoption Orders and other permanence arrangements

31 October 2021



75%

87%

Policy has been updated and now includes CAO and adoption support, policy is currently with legal and AD for review.

CS2116 Children’s Services lead proactive relational practice within partnership arrangements

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

CS2116.A

Implement a Contextual Safeguarding approach to understand and respond to young people’s
experiences of significant harm beyond their families.

31 March 2022



Completed.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 12

% Complete
100%

Children’s Services Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

CS2116.B

Develop a Strengths based approach to child protection conferences

Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



% Complete

100%

New style case conferences go live on the 10.01.2022 all training has been completed and partners and stakeholders are all on board and supportive of the initiative. The
implementation plan is that all ICPC's from 10.01.2022 will be via the new process and over the coming months this will be increased to include all RCPC's this is in order
for families to adjust to the new system.

CS2116.C

Develop pathway for 16/17 year olds presenting as homelessness and in need of accommodation

31 December 2021



75%

As part of planning for the DLUHC our protocol has been redrafted and a clear pathway has been developed. This now needs further to work to ensure it address the
needs of each segment (16/17 year olds; Care Leavers; Custody release). Plans for the NHP GM collaboration have progressed. Work with Housing Colleagues has
developed outline proposals for provision for 16 & 17 year old homeless young people who do not qualify or refuse support under Section 20.

Page 58

CS2116.D

Develop accommodation options for young people presenting as homeless

31 December 2021



75%

As part of planning for the DLUHC our protocol has been redrafted and a clear pathway has been developed. This now needs further to work to ensure it address the
needs of each segment (16/17 year olds; Care Leavers; Custody release). Plans for the NHP GM collaboration have progressed. Work with Housing Colleagues has
developed outline proposals for provision for 16 & 17 year old homeless young people who do not qualify or refuse support under Section 20.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 12 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2101 Refresh Locality Plan to reflect impact of COVID and emerging new priorities

30 September 2021




Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2101.A

Establish governance arrangements for development and ownership of the plan, within the
shadow arrangements of new locality construct.

30 April 2021



100%

30 September 2021



100%

PH2102 Develop Intelligence Network to support strategic and tactical intelligence requirements
within new system architecture

31 December 2021



65%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2102.A

Describe structure, purpose and function of the intelligence network, signed off by partners
across the system.

30 June 2021



100%

% Complete

Will be owned by system board.

PH2101.B

Lead on collaborative development of refreshed Locality Plan

Completed and signed off.

Page 59

% Complete
70%

Excellent progress has been made agreed to roll out a system for neighbourhood intelligence and will be providing neighbourhood level intelligence support. That will
create a neighbourhood intelligence pack available by April 1st.

PH2102.B

Bring together network, agree ways of working and develop work plan aligned with priorities.

We are continuing to develop work plans to meet the requirements of the LCO and future neighbourhood working.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 1 Of 12

30 September 2021



70%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2102.C

Begin working against work plan, completing at least one piece of joint working.

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



% Complete

70%

We have completed several dash boards for the LCO linked to their mandates. However these can be incrementally improved upon as need dictates.
31 December 2021



50%

PH2103 Work collaboratively to understand and prepare for Public Health in the context of the
Integration and Innovation, and Public Health Proposals expected in due course

30 June 2021



55%

Page 60

PH2102.D

Reflect on processes, refine approaches, and share learning.

The intelligence lead (Chris Tyson) is working closely with team members to develop new systems.

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

PH2103.A

Have due regard to the local changes to system architecture, and define where and how the
service needs to connect to the wider system to influence local policy and decision making

30 June 2021



60%

30 June 2021



50%

The recent Omicron wave has delayed HSC integration programme.

PH2103.B

Review and update MOU with LCO, ensuring collaborative leadership at locality level with a key
focus on improving population health

Commenced work programme regarding prevention, inequalities, review of intelligence and cancer screening early diagnosis plan. Further work required regarding
ongoing Public Health support for LCO, however it has been on hold due to recent Omicron wave.

PH2104 Lead on the development and implementation of a system wide all-age prevention strategy

31 March 2022



Ref.

Due

Status

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 2 Of 12

90%

% Complete

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2104.A

Co-design the vision, narrative and goals with key stakeholders across the system recognising the
impact and leaning of COVID-19 on our prevention priorities. Secure strategy sign-off.

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 September 2021



100%

31 March 2022



75%

Sign-off secured during Oct / Nov 2021, now progressing with implementation.

PH2104.B

Prevention and Neighbourhood Project Board to oversee Implementation across the system

Prevention and Neighbourhood Board continuing to meet and overseeing strategy and work stream progress – the Board is being reconfigured in qtr. 4 due to a number
of Board members leaving the council.

PH2104.C

Page 61

Undertake a Rapid Health Needs Assessment (specifically focused on mental wellbeing, physical
activity, tobacco, obesity, healthy eating, drugs and alcohol, oral health) to inform the health
improvement commission

30 April 2021



100%

31 March 2022



75%

Lifestyle HNA complete. Recommendations informing the health improvement commission and prevention strategy

PH2104.D

Develop system wide procurement/development plans including the 2021/22 public health
improvement prevention commission

Contract has been awarded for the specialist health improvement tender. Other elements of prevention offer also progressing i.e. specialist physical activity offer.

PH2104.E

Develop revised service specification

30 June 2021



100%

Procure agreed service specification and award contract

31 October 2021



100%

Complete.

PH2104.F

Complete.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 3 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



75%

31 March 2022



100%

PH2105 LCO Population Health Management Projects

31 March 2022



47%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2105.A

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with LCO
partners, identifying priority health needs

30 April 2021



PH2104.G

Design and implement an agreed and integrated model of social prescribing / good help network

% Complete

Model designed and agreed, full implementation delayed due to data sharing agreement sign off but launch planned for Jan ‘22.

PH2104.H

Assess progress, achievements and update strategy implementation plan

A draft strategy has been developed based on progress made in 20/21.

Page 62

% Complete
50%

Work plan in progress focusing on cancer, CVD and neighbourhoods however some delays due to pressures in Public Health and health care system due to Omicron
wave.

PH2105.B

Identify and deliver programmes of work using population health management to tackle three
priority health areas - Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating components of a population
health management approach.

31 March 2022

Incorporated prevention strategy into programme of work with public health systems characteristics review to be conducted later in year.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 4 Of 12



45%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

Due Date

Status

% Complete

PH2106 Wider Determinants As we move from the pandemic response, we need to address the impact
on the wider determinants of health.

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2106.A

Develop work plan, informed by intelligence and in conjunction with Local Authority partners, and
the Economic Support Network, to identify priority areas of work

31 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



75%

PH2107 Deliver neighbourhood focussed programme of work, focussing on addressing an element
within wider determinants of health. Linked to broader LCO neighbourhoods ‘Test of Concept’
programme of work.

31 March 2022



16%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2107.A

Decide on priority focus, informed by Rapid Health Needs Assessment, and identify key partners
to form project group. Describe project plan and key milestones.

30 June 2021



87%

% Complete

Priority lead and areas identified

Page 63

PH2106.B

Deliver against agreed priorities, incorporating programmes of work including Community Wealth
Building, Housing, Finance and Work and Skills.

Programmes being delivered with work and skills, housing and vol. sector partners.

% Complete
50%

Neighbourhood programme of work agreed with LCO to integrate with the respiratory test of concept programme in Heywood and the establishment of the Heywood
Prevention Network.
PH2107.B

Begin delivery phase of project, incorporating ongoing monitoring and evaluation. Share learning
across other ‘Test of Concept’ programmes

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 5 Of 12

30 September 2021



0%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Due Date

Status

31 March 2022



0%

PH2108 ‘Re-entry not response’

31 March 2022



87%

Page 64

Action Plan

% Complete

Not yet commenced

PH2107.C

Complete evaluation of programme to inform wider roll-out of concept, focussing on additional
areas and priorities.

Not yet commenced

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

% Complete

PH2108.A

Develop a programme for our most vulnerable to address deconditioning and mental wellbeing.

01 May 2021



100%

31 March 2022



75%

PH2109 Recommission the Sexual Health Service to ensure improved access to services and alignment
to GM vision

31 March 2022



87%

Ref.

Due

Status

Programme designed, agreed and funding allocated

PH2108.B

Deliver against programme plan, aligned to roadmap out of lockdown

Delivery of the 7 bounce back programmes underway with ongoing progress updates and review.

Name

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 6 Of 12

% Complete

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2109.A

Due Date

Status

30 April 2021



100%

Develop service specification with developmental requirements clearly outlined; consider learning
30 April 2021
from Covid-19.



100%

Procure agreed service specification and award contract



100%

Conduct soft market testing with providers to inform the market of the forthcoming opportunity
and to understand the market appetite for the service.

% Complete

Complete

PH2109.B

Complete

PH2109.C

30 November 2021

Page 65

Successful bidder is Virgin Care who is the current provider. They have also rebranded to HCRG Care Group. We have now entered the mobilisation period – new
contract to be in place from 1st April.

31 March 2022



50%

PH2110 Finalise the partnership agreement between RBC and the Link4Life

31 October 2021



91%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2110.A

Review previous work completed in light of the L4L covid recovery plan and amend to reflect
developments in L4L operations.

30 June 2021



PH2109.D

New service to commence

No change – on track to commence 1st April 2022

Review complete, update report submitted to Cabinet July 2021. Complete.

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 7 Of 12

% Complete
100%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2110.B

Finalise the Link4Life outcomes framework

Due Date

Status

% Complete

30 September 2021



100%

31 October 2021



75%

Performance framework agreed and embedded as part of performance monitoring processes.

PH2110.C

Finalise and sign off the partnership agreement as a legal document

VEAT notice complete allowing award of partnership agreement. Service specification and contract nearing completion. Sign off will be completed in Q4.

31 October 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2111.A

Allocation of the Contain Outbreak Management Fund 2021/22 finalised and approved by Cabinet

30 June 2021



100%

Determine use of additional drug misuse and obesity funding allocation and put in place relevant
contract procedures if applicable.

30 June 2021



100%

Page 66

PH2111 Ensure the allocation and use of additional funding received to support public health
outcomes is in line with legal and governance requirements

96%

% Complete

Complete

PH2111.B

Complete -Contract variations now in place. Programmes are delivering or in the process of being implemented. Grant returns being completed as required.
PH2111.C

Support Community Safety with the allocation of the ‘new burdens’ domestic abuse funding

30 June 2021

Spending plan in place for new burdens funding. Contract extensions for domestic abuse services approved in Q1 by ICB

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 8 Of 12



100%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2111.D

Ensure exit strategies are in place for all non-recurrent grant funding.

Due Date

Status

31 October 2021



% Complete

85%

Planning for 2022/23 use of covid related grant funding is continuing and will help inform exit strategies for non-recurrent funding if applicable.

PH2112 To provide assurance on the effective implementation of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme
and reduce any health inequalities

31 March 2022



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2112.A

As SRO Ensure good programme management of the vaccination programme with regular reports
to Vaccine Assurance Group, Health Protection Board and Gold Control as needed

31 March 2022



81%

% Complete
70%

Page 67

Booster surge programme successful during December however, inequalities continue to be a challenge across all elements of programme. An intensive programme of
work is underway to work to address this.

PH2112.B

Cohort 1-9 invited for first doses

30 April 2021



100%

31 July 2021



100%

30 April 2021



100%

All cohorts have been invited for first doses

PH2112.C

Cohort 10 are invited for first dose

All cohorts have been invited for first doses.

PH2112.D

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (1st)

The plan was last updated on 30 July 21 with input from the group members. The group meets fortnightly. All leads for target groups have been identified and regularly
contacted for vaccination uptake updates.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 9 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2112.E

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (2nd)

Due Date

Status

31 July 2021



% Complete

100%

The plan was last updated in September with input from the group members. The group continues to meet fortnightly. A new Public Health Outbreak Officer now
supports and leads on delivery of the plan. Dedicated task and finish groups have been set up to deliver targeted work to reduce inequalities.

PH2112.F

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (3rd)

30 October 2021



100%

Page 68

Workshops to define activity in 6 priority areas are complete, interventions co-designed with partners and work is ongoing. Workshop for pregnancy, boosters and
clinically extremely vulnerable/at risk have also taken place, mobilisation in progress. Winter messages have been designed and shared with partners for wider
dissemination through networks. A large number of surge clinics have been stepped up over December and will continue throughout January, these have been at
various locations across the borough, including our 6 priority areas.

31 January 2021



0%

PH2113 Provide oversight and delivery where required, of COVID testing programme across the
borough

30 June 2021



75%

Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2113.A

Deliver phase 2 of Community Testing programme, continuously improving and adapting as
required (April to June).

30 June 2021



PH2112.G

Health Inequalities Plan refreshed and reviewed quarterly (4th)

Not yet commenced.

% Complete
75%

Community testing is currently continuing until the end of March. Since the emergence of Omicron there has been huge pressure on testing, both PCR and LFD.
Rochdale has kept three FAST sites and its roving team which has helped during this time. Issues with PCR testing are linked to lab capacity and appears to be easing. We
have had assurance from DHSC that LFD stock will improve from wk. commencing 10th January. The situation in Rochdale is monitored on a daily basis.
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 10 Of 12

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2113.B

Develop plan for ongoing sustainable model of community testing for post June ’21, ensuring
emerging needs surrounding COVID continue to be met.

Due Date

Status

30 June 2021



% Complete

75%

DHSC only confirm community testing plans for 3 months at a time. The plan for Jan - Mar has been agreed and is in operation. We await further info from DHSC about
testing post March, prior to Omicron we had worked up an exit strategy which could be adapted, this will include what testing Rochdale may want to maintain despite
DHSC plans.

PH2114 Deliver enhanced contact tracing model

30 June 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

Page 69

Develop detailed plan and ensure appropriate resource in place to deliver enhanced model of
contact tracing, focussing on priority groups, continuously improving and adapting as required

30 June 2021



PH2114.A

100%

% Complete
100%

Local enhanced contact tracing model continues to deliver Tier 1 and Tier 2 contact tracing service. Both services are effective and play a vital role in reducing the spread
of infection within the borough. Local services provide us with greater control and improve our efficacy to reduce transmission in areas and settings with a higher risk of
spread.

PH2115 Develop and implement enhanced isolation support offer

30 September 2021



Ref.

Name

Due

Status

PH2115.A

Develop enhanced isolation support offer for the borough, incorporating national and GM
programmes of work and ensuring they are sufficient and appropriate for our residents

30 April 2021



GM and national isolation support offer established with ongoing review and development against roadmap

Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 11 Of 12

100%

% Complete
100%

Public Health Directorate Plan 2021-22
Action Plan

PH2115.B

Implement and monitor enhanced offer

Offer monitored and complete.

Page 70
Directorate Plan New. v4_2

Page 12 Of 12

Due Date

Status

30 September 2021



% Complete

100%

Agenda Item 9
Report to Health, Schools and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio

Report Author
Public/Private Document

16th March 2022
Cabinet Member for Adult
Care and Wellbeing,
Cabinet Member for
Children's Services and
Education
Carolyn Whitham
Public

1st & 2nd Quarter Social Care Complaints
Executive Summary
1.

The report provides Members with a summary of Adult and Children’s Social
Care complaints and compliments received during the first half of 2021/22.
Recommendation

2.

It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise
the information contained in the report and assess whether further
information or explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in
the report.
Reason for Recommendation

3.

Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.
Key Points for Consideration

4.

Appendix 1 to the report provides a brief commentary relating to complaints
dealt with under the relevant complaints procedure by Adult Social Care and
Children’s Social Care Services during the 1st and 2nd quarters of 2021/22.
Appendix 1 also includes examples of how an individual complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution as requested by Members at a previous
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting.
Appendix 2 provides details of complaints in graph form. The format of the
report includes information on trends, and the graphs display trend analysis
for each quarter in the reporting period.
Adult Social Care complaint figures will also include details of any
complaints regarding financial assessments received during the reporting
period. This is a function carried out by the Revenues and Benefits Service.

Page 71

The Customer Feedback Team are working with services to improve the
quality of information recorded, and to ensure lessons are being learnt from
complaints and action taken is recorded and reported.
To improve complaints monitoring, the Customer Feedback Team also
provides weekly status reports to Assistant Directors to enable closer
monitoring of current complaints.
It should be noted that despite the additional pressures on services due to
the impact of the Covid19 pandemic, both Adult Social Care and Children’s
Social Care services have continued to accept new complaints and respond
to the majority of complaints within timescale.
4.1

Alternatives Considered
None. Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system
which is used to record complaints and compliments received by social care
services.
Costs and Budget Summary

5.

None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial
implications.
Complaints considered at stage two or stage three of the Children’s Social
Care complaints procedure have financial implications due to the statutory
requirement to appoint an external Independent Person and in some cases
an external Investigating Officer at stage two, and three independent people
to sit on a Review Panel at stage three. All costs associated with Children’s
Social Care complaints incurred throughout the year are included in the
Children’s Social Care Annual Complaints Report.
Risk and Policy Implications

6.

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this
report.
Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may
result in a recommended financial remedy. Complaints considered by the
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.
Consultation

7.

Not applicable.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

Page 72

8.

None

For Further Information Contact:

Theresa Edwards, Tel: 01706 923547,
Theresa.Edwards@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 73

Appendix 1
Complaint Statistics
Adult Social Care
In June 2007 the Department of Health provided a set of proposals to unify and reform
the current arrangements for making complaints across Health and Adult Social Care;
‘Making Experiences Count.’ As well as fulfilling the commitment in 'Our Health, Our
Care, Our Say', it proposed a radical new approach to complaints handling which is
more flexible and supports organisational learning.
The formalised guidance for the new arrangements was published on 25 February
2009; ‘Listening, Responding, Improving’ and the Regulations were laid before
Parliament on 27 February 2009 for councils and health organisations to implement
from 1 April 2009.
These Regulations enshrine a duty to co-operate with health partners in relation to
complaints that cut across Health and Social Care Services.
The Council introduced a joint complaints process for dealing with Health and Adult
social care complaints from 1 April 2009. It relates to concerns received from this date
onwards and is in line with the Making Experiences Count initiative.
Where a complaint is received about Adult Social Care Services functions or functions
of any party to the Joint Protocol (i.e. Health Partners) the organisation which receives
the complaint handles the co-ordination of the complaint.
The process for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints is a one stage process. If
the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may
refer their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman.
Not all complaints received by Adult Care are eligible to be considered under the
statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will be
considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of Adult
Care complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.
24 new complaints were received by Adult Care Services during the first half of 202122. Details of these complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
7 new complaints were received during the first quarter
1 complaint was upheld:


Communication problems around application for deferred payment and support
of service user.

2 complaints were partially upheld:


Dispute re outstanding care charges.

Page 74

Appendix 1


Concerns regarding dispute of care charges

4 complaints were not upheld.
17 new complaints were received during the second quarter
1 complaint was upheld:


Adult Care involvement with service user whilst in hospital (joint with Health)

6 complaints were partially upheld:







Standard of care provided to service user whilst in care home
Level of care provided and delay in resolving charging issue
Standard of service provided by care home, hospital & out of hours service (joint
with Health)
Information given and lack of communication regarding level of client
contribution for care
Lack of support and communication during home adaptations process
Unresolved issues following adaptations to service user’s propert7

1 complaint was not upheld.
3 complaints are still ongoing.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned
First Quarter
Following the upheld complaint regarding a delay in an invoice being issued for care
home fees, an error inputting information was discussed with the worker in question
and additional training and support was discussed as part of their supervision. The
service also made changes to how managers have oversight of support plans and
the services that are added to the system to reduce the risk of future errors
occurring.
Following partially upheld complaint regarding outstanding care charges it was
established that the Support Planner did not explain the procedure to the
complainant including any delays that may occur due to checking the CHC
paperwork. An apology was issued.
Second Quarter
Following the upheld complaint regarding the delay in responding to a request for a
service users care package to be increased it was found that the length of time taken
to respond was excessive. The issues will be addressed with the Social Worker by
the line manager.

Page 75

Appendix 1
Following the partially upheld complaint regarding a lack of formal care assessment
an apology was issued to the complainant. It was identified there was a lack of
information and advice on how to proceed when complainant raised concerns about
affordability. Financial hardship and debt training was recommended and an
agreement that line managers would discuss the issue through supervision.
Timescales
There is no statutory timescale for dealing with Adult Social Care complaints, and the
timescale is agreed between the Investigator and the complainant in each case.
However, the aim is to complete investigations within 25 working days. The average
time taken to deal with Adult Care complaints closed during the first half of 2021-21
was 25 working days which was on target.
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how an Adult Social Care complaint has been dealt
with from receipt to resolution.
Complaint
A complaint was received during the second quarter of the year regarding the services
provided by a support planner and a community psychiatric nurse at a care home in
Rochdale where her mother was receiving care and was allocated to 2 officers in Adult
Care for investigation.
Adult care asked requester for consent to share the complaint with Pennine Care as
the Community Psychiatric Nurse was employed by them. They also advised that the
timescale would be increased to 30 days given that this would be a joint investigation
between Rochdale Adult Care and Pennine Care. The complainant gave consent to
share and Pennine Care confirmed they would investigate the points relating to them.
The complainant then requested advice on how to submit a Subject Access Request
to access her mother’s records and was sent the appropriate information.
Pennine Care queried time scales as Pennine time scales are longer. The complainant
who confirmed they were happy to receive separate responses given the difference in
timescales.
A response was sent to the complainant which partially upheld the complaint.
The contents of the assessment report have been discussed with the support planner
resulting in Adult Care apologising for any inaccuracies. Issuesof recording
information on assessments have been addressed within the team meetings and is
now a standing item on Team Meeting Agendas. Line management have been
instructed to discuss recording information within supervision meetings reflecting the
importance of accurate recording and the choice of words written in an assessment.

Page 76

Appendix 1
Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. A
total of 28 compliments were recorded for Adult Care Services during this reporting
period, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.

Team/Service Area

No.

Compliment received from

STARS

15

Assessment & Support Planning

4

West Locality Team

6

Assessment and Support and East
Locality Team

1

Service User (13)
Relative of Service User (2)
Service User (4)
Relative of Service User (1)
Service User (1)
Relative of Service User (3)
Professional (2)
Relative of Service User (1)

Occupational Therapy

1

Service User

Prevention Team

1

Service User

“Superb communications throughout. Very difficult year due to COVID-19 but
everyone did their best. Could not have asked for a better service from start to finish.
Confidence in dealing with my recent amputation. Adult care you deserve a pat on
the back and you should find a way of promoting your good work to the general
public.”
Compliment for Occupational Health Team
“Thank you for all your care and help of mee these last few weeks. I have been
looked after with understanding and kindness througout. You are all STARS to me
and live up to your names. With love and many thanks.”
Compliment for STARS Team.
“Thank you so much for all your help in trying to get a quick resolution for this
matter.”
Compliment for Assessment & Support Planning Team
“The amazing STARS team! Massive thanks to everyone at STARS for everything
you've done and helped me with over the last 5 yerrs. Especially you guys in the
office who have always had my back and helped me when I've needed you. I really
appreciate every single one of you. I pray that your teams would grow and develop
beyond your wildest dreams. Until we meet again!.”
Compliment for STARS Team

Page 77

Appendix 1
“A service user rang this afternoon and she wanted me to pass a message on to
you. She rang to thank you for your help when you went out to visit them, she said
that you were so helpful and down to earth and her and her husband are so grateful
for your help. She added that Adult Care are wonderful people..
Compliment for West Locality Team
“Thank you again for all your help, I have nothing but praise for you and your
department, you have been amazing..”
Compliment for Assessment and Support and East Locality Team

Page 78

Appendix 1
Children’s Social Care
Changes were made to the children’s social services representations procedure as a
result of the Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000, Adoption and Children Act 2002 and
the Health and Social Care (Community Health and Standards) Act 2003.
Complaints are dealt with in accordance with The Children Act 1989 Representations
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.
The handling and consideration of complaints under this procedure consists of three
stages:
Stage 1 - Local Resolution
Stage 2 - Investigation
Stage 3 - Review Panel
Local Resolution requires the local authority to resolve a complaint as close to the
point of contact with the child or young person as possible (i.e. through front line
management of the service). In doing so the local authority should consider the wishes
of the complainant about how the complaint should be dealt with. In most
circumstances complaints should be considered at Stage 1 in the first instance.
Consideration of complaints at Stage 2 is normally achieved through an investigation
conducted by an investigating officer and an independent person. Stage 2 commences
either when the complainant requests it after an investigation at Stage 1, or where the
complainant and the local authority have agreed that Stage 1 is not appropriate.
Where Stage 2 of the complaints procedure has been concluded and the complainant
is still dissatisfied, he/she will be eligible to request further consideration of the
complaint by a Review Panel. It is not possible to review a complaint that has not yet
been fully considered at Stage 2 (including providing the reports and adjudication to
the complainant).
Following the conclusion of all three stages of the complaints process, if the
complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint they may refer
their concerns for consideration by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman.
Information relating to Children’s Social Care complaints is available on the Council’s
website, and leaflets providing full details of the complaints process and how to raise
concerns are provided as required. The Children’s Rights Service has also developed
complaints leaflets specifically for children in care.
Not all complaints received by Children’s Social Care are eligible to be considered
under the statutory procedure, and where a complaint does not meet the criteria, it will
be considered under the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure. Details of
complaints considered under both procedures will be included in this report.

Page 79

Appendix 1
A total of 18 new complaints were received by Children’s Services in the first half of
2021-22, 17 of which were dealt with under the statutory Children’s Social Care
complaints procedure and 1 complaint was dealt with under the Corporate Complaints
Procedure.
Where possible concerns are resolved by the service informally without progressing
to a formal complaint, which is beneficial to the complainant and contributes to a
reduction in the number of formal complaints being received.
Details of the complaints and their outcomes can be found below.
The types of complaints received
7 new complaints were received during the first quarter
1 complaint was upheld


Concerns raised regarding contents of email from social worker.

3 complaints were partially upheld:




Information not shared and delay in assessment being completed.
Lack of resources for looked after child
Information shared inappropriately

3 complaints were not upheld.
11 new complaints were considered at stage one
4 complaints were partially upheld:





Incorrect information contained in assessment
Lack of communication around fostering application
Lack of communication from social worker
Attitude of social worker and incorrect information recorded

7 complaints were not upheld.
Examples of Action Taken and Lessons Learned
First Quarter
Following the partially upheld complaint regarding information not shared and delay in
assessment being completed
•
•

Cared for Children Team responded to the points raised in complaint relating
to the social worker and lack of progression in completion of the Child & Family
assessment.
Complainant's request for the psychological assessment to be shared with the
Cared for Children Team to be followed up.

Page 80

Appendix 1
•
•

Cared for Child review minutes dated 12/11/2020 and 26/04/2021 to be sent to
complainant's home address.
Consultation prior to the next Cared for Child review meeting to ensure that
complainant is able to share their views regarding the care plan for the children
prior to the review meeting.

The issues and learning from the complaint were taken into whole service meetings
and discussed with the Virtual School team to look at how to avoid the situation again
in the future and bring greater clarity to the PEP Policy.
Second Quarter
Following the partially upheld complaint regarding incorrect information contained in
an assessment an apology was given that the information was not clear enough and
that the social worker had included statements made without evidence in the case file.
The social worker involved has since left the local authority so it is not possible to
discuss the concerns directly with them.
Further to the partially upheld complaint relating to a lack of communication around an
application for fostering the Practice Manager re apologised for a miscommunication
about the venue of the meeting between the complainant and Practice Manager. The
complainant accepted their apology.
Timescales
There are statutory timescales for dealing with Children’s Social Care complaints at
each stage of the process. Every attempt is made to resolve complaints within the
initial timescale; however, the regulations allow the timescale for each stage to be
extended in consultation with the complainant.
Stage 1

10 working days (can be extended to up to a maximum of 20 working
days)

Stage 2

25 working days (can be extended up to a maximum of 65 working
days)

Stage 3

Acknowledgement within 2 working days, review to be held within 30
working days.

18 of the complaints received during the first and second quarters were dealt with
under the statutory Social Care complaints procedure at stage one, 11 of which were
responded to within the statutory timescale.
Complaint Example
The following is an example of a how a Children’s Social Care complaint has been
dealt with from receipt to resolution.

Page 81

Appendix 1
A complaint was received by email requesting back payment for 16 months for
providing foster care for a family member. The complaint was registered at stage one
of the statutory complaints procedure and was allocated to an Investigating Officer.
An acknowledgement was sent to the complainant.
Three issues were raised around general support for the fostering, lack of support
from the social worker and lack of financial support during the fostering placement.
A full investigation was undertaken including an examination of the case file,
discussions with the Social Worker, safeguarding team and other workers involved.
The findings of the investigation were that this was a private family arrangement that
the council did not have financial responsibility for the child. However support had
been provided by the social worker who was in regular contact with the family as was
the family support worker and safeguarding and mental health teams.
The council offered to work with the family to improve the relationship between the
child and the foster carer but this did not happen.
The complaint was found to be partially upheld and was resolved at stage one with the
complainant received an apology.
Compliments
Compliments received from service users are also recorded and shared with staff. 38
compliments were recorded for Children’s Social Care Services during the first half of
2020-21, a breakdown and examples of which can be found below.
Team/Service Area

No.

Compliment received from

First Response /Safeguarding

2

Cared For Children

4

Child Protection & Court Team

14

Early Help and Schools

1

Professional (1)
Parent/family (1)
Professional (2)
Foster carers (2)
Professional (5)
Parent/family (7)
Foster carers (1)
Professional and family (1)
Parent/family (1)

Youth Justice

3

Professional (3)

First Response

1

Professional (1)

Children’s Social Care

3

Children with Disabilities

1

Professional (2)
Parent/family (1)
Professional (1)

Page 82

Appendix 1

Safeguarding

2

Agency Social Worker

1

Professional (1)
Parent/family (1)
Professional (1)

Children and Families

1

Parent/family (1)

Child Protection

1

Professional (1)

“I just wanted to drop a quick email to say how fantastic the social worker has been .
We have just had a core group meeting and it was the first positive meeting for the
family. The social worker has worked so hard to pull this together. I have loved
working with her and wish she could keep the case. The next social worker had got
big boots to fill!!”
Compliment for First Response Team/Complex Safeguarding
“I just wanted to add to what others had said in the meeting, you have done a
fantastic job getting these children to where they are now, it’s not an easy job. It was
a sombre meeting, we discussed some pretty sad stuff that the children have
experienced, but for xx and adoption, although I wish they could remain a sibling
group, I fully understand your reasoning for wanting xx to have the opportunity of a
fresh start. It has been a pleasure to be part of this team working around the
children.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team
“I have recently been given a family support worker.... I don’t even know how to put
into words how amazing she is. In the short time we’ve been working together she
has actually saved me in so many ways, the most kindest, supportive and in
judgemental person I’ve ever come across. I say this in person but sometimes I think
peers need to know also. I cannot thank her enough on how amazing she is.... a
massive credit to the company and has honestly, in so many ways, saved my life.
Please could this be sent to the family support team and acknowledged as should
be. I cannot thank you enough for giving me this support when my life was
downward spiralling after losing my job etc...
she’s just amazing. From the bottom of my heart, thank you.”
Compliment for Early, Help and Schools

“Thanks very much for these. I have to say that you are one of the best Social
Workers I have ever experienced. Keeping us in the loop and getting minutes to us
promptly makes such a difference.”
Compliment for Child Protection & Court Team

Page 83

Appendix 1

“Please can you contact the YOT Manager at Rochdale and pass on some whooping
praise for xxx? She was on co-ord this Saturday and was really professional and
effective and her communication certainly made things a lot easier to deal with from
home It goes a long way and was REALLY appreciated.”
Compliment for Youth Justice Service
“HI, I wanted to let you know I thought you did really well in the ICPCC yesterday, it
was clear that you had a good understanding of the strengths and risks within the
family and that you have formed a relationship with the family. It is was really positive
that you were able to breakdown the reasons why the children changed their
statements regarding domestic abuse incidents, I think Mum took on board what you
were saying and hopefully this will assist her to participate in the CP Plan.!”
Compliment for Safeguarding

Page 84

Appendix 2

Adult Social Care Complaints 1st & 2nd quarters 2021-22

20
18

17

16
14
12
1st quarter
10

Page 85

8

2nd quarter
7

7

6

5
4

4

4
2
2

1

1
0

0

Total complaints received

Response sent within 25
days

Response sent within 35
days

Response over 35 days

Ongoing

ef
fic
ien
cy

0

f in

0

lic
y

0

Po

1

St
af

n

2

rv
ice
. ..

tio

oc
a

2

Se

all

n

tio

2

ce

ou
r

ve
lo
fr
es

ica

m
un

co
m

1

Le

of

en
t

m

es
s

ss

la

cia

0

La
ck

an

1

Fin

ff

sta

nd
ar
ds

of

ta

re
to
m
ee
ts

ct

du

de
/c
on

en
t

tm
0

Fa
ilu

tit
u

At

re
a

e/
ill
t

Page 86
Ab
us

Appendix 2

Adult Social Care complaints by type 1st & 2nd quarters 2021-22

10

8

6
5
1st quarter

4
3
3

1

0
0
2nd quarter

2

2
1

ine
ffi

Po
li
cy

y

nc

cie

1

cy

1

Po
li

11

ine
ffi

1

af
f

0
1
2

St

1
2

.. .

2

Q2

22

Q2

3

Q2

1

cie
nc
Q2
y
Ab
Q2
us
e/
At
ill
tit
tre
ud
Q2
at
e/
m
c
Fa
on
en
ilu
du
t
re
ct
to
of
m
sta
ee
Q2
ff
ts
Fin
ta
a
n
nc
Q2
da
ial
rd
La
s
a
ck
ss
Q2
e
o
s
fc
Le
sm
om
ve
en
lo
m
t
fr
u
n
es
i
ca
ou
tio
rc
n
ea
llo
ca
tio
n

af
f

0

St

0

.. .

0

Q1

0

Q1

0

Q1

Page 87
Q1
Ab
Q1
us
e/
At
ill
tit
tre
ud
Q1
at
e/
m
co
Fa
en
n
ilu
du
t
re
ct
to
of
m
sta
ee
Q1
ff
ts
Fin
ta
a
nd
nc
Q1
ar
ial
ds
La
a
c
s
Q1
ko
se
ss
fc
Le
m
om
ve
en
lo
m
t
fr
u
nic
es
ou
at
ion
rc
ea
llo
ca
tio
n

Appendix 2

Adult Social Care complaints by type upheld/partially upheld 1st & 2nd
quarters 2021-22

10

8

6
5
No of complaints

4
Upheld/Partially
upheld

3

2
2
1
11

0
0

Appendix 2

Stage 1 Children's Social Care Complaints 1st & 2nd quarters 2021 - 22
14

12
11

10

Page 88

1st quarter

8

2nd quarter

7

6
5
4
4
3

3

2
2
1

0

Total complaints received

Response sent within 10 days

Response sent within 20 days

Response sent outside statutory
timescale

Appendix 2

Stage 1 Children's Social Care Complaints by type 1st & 2nd quarters 2021 - 22
10

8

6
1st quarter

Page 89

2nd quarter

4
3

3

2

2

2

2

2
1

1
0

0

Attitude/conduct
of staff

Breach of
confidentiality

0
Failure to meet
standards

1

1
0

Lack of
Level of resource
communication
allocation

0
Staff...

Service...

La
c

of
co
nf
id
en
t

of

co
nf

id

du
c

to

fs

ff

ta

1
1

...

2

Q2

2

...

3

Q2

en
tia
ko
lit
y
fc
om
m
un
ica
ti o
n
La
c

ch

Br
ea

1

Q2

Q2

0 0

e/
co
n

f

af

aw
al

dr

st

1

tu
d

ith

W

of

1 1

At
ti

rv
ice

Se

de

tu

2

Q2

Q1

...

Q1

1

At
ti

1 1

Q1

ia
ko
lit
y
f
co
Q1
m
Le
m
ve
un
lo
ica
fr
ti o
es
n
ou
rc
e
al
lo
ca
tio
n

Q1

ch

Br
ea

Page 90
Q1

Appendix 2

Stage 1 Children's Social Care Complaints by type upheld/partially upheld 1st & 2nd quarters
2021 -22

10

8

6
No of complaints

4
Upheld/Partially
upheld

3

2
2

1

0
0
0

Your Trust
overview.
Page 91

Agenda Item 10

October – December 2021

Health & Safety
Right Directions have now completed 8 audits, these audits identify risks and leads to a facility/service
based Risk Reduction Plan. The most important KPI is an overall audit score of 75%.

56%

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

77%
88%
88%
76%
84%
89%
96% (provisional)

Page 92

Our results are as below:
• Resource Centre
Touchstones
Middleton Arena
Heywood Sports Village
Hollingworth Lake Water Activity Centre
Littleborough Sports Centre
Rochdale Leisure Centre
Development Team

(significant follow-up has been carried out and
the venue will be audited again in March 2022)

Key Successes
• Net Promoter Score (Customer satisfaction): result in the last 30 days is 58% vs. a
national benchmark of 45%.
• Successful transfer of the pantomime from HCC to HSV Sold in total 7,514 tickets –
99.4% of available tickets - an increase of 685 on 2019’s pantomime at Heywood Civic
Centre
Page 93

• Most successful pantomime yet at Middleton. Sold 15,354 tickets - 67.2% of available
tickets - which is an increase of 927 customers from 2019’s Cinderella
• Holiday Activity and Food - 49 different Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) programmes
were delivered to vulnerable children and families across Rochdale Borough (RBC).
Every activity was free and included food. There was 31 locally trusted community
organisations that delivered HAF provision, covering each township in the borough.
• The percentage of returning fitness member increased from an average of 63.4% in April
2021 to 80.5%
• The % of swimming academy pupils returning is 63.1% at the start of Quarter 1 to 82.9%
at the end of Quarter 3.

Successes
• Throughput across the sites has increased by 33.2% between QTR 1 and QTR 3

• #Thrive scheme averaging of 1500 attending each month. #Thrive is for children and
young people aged up to 19 years old who are experiencing emotional health and
wellbeing issues.

Page 94

• Activities for targeted groups returning strongly - The average in QTR 3 was 217
attendees per month compared with 47 in QTR 1.
• Health improvement activities, which has grown from an average of 191 participants per
month in QTR1 to 788 participants in QTR3.

Funding Success
• Creative People and Places funding bid successful bringing £1m into the Borough

Page 95

• Funding secured from GMCA and Pennine Care to deliver the following children’
wellbeing projects;
o Development of a CYP social prescription programme – 30hr post and a £20k
budget.
o Mindful Movements in the community project
o Building Confidence through leadership project (MHST)
o Gym membership referral scheme to support children's wellbeing (#Thrive &
MHST)
• Bounce Back and Go Funding: We have received £80k funding from the Rochdale
public health team. Purpose of the programme is to target the elderly and those who
shielded whilst managing long term conditions over the pandemic.

• Tier 2 Weight Management Funding: We have received £72,931 to run a series of 12
week courses across each of the townships. Working in partnership with the Rochdale
public health team who are funding the project and Living well who are the budget holders

Your Community
Local Pilot- #Get Roch Moving
Cycling: Twelve Learn to Ride/Road Ride Ready sessions were delivered at Hopwood Hall College,
Rochdale Campus. Partnership work with: Living Well, Hopwood Hall College, TfGM, NCA, Cycling UK.

Page 96

New Pioneers Event: A community event took place at Rochdale Unitarian Church in November.
Seventy four residents attended. Residents arrived feeling nervous but stayed for a long time, chatted to
local councillors who were really interested and residents left feeling like they were important with a
sense of pride and smiling. Consultation was done at the event regarding how people decide to spend
their time and to start thinking about moving more.

Walks: Four walks and talk sessions took place. Participants have stated how much they benefit from
the walks, particularly if they live alone.
Multi sports: Inclusive Multisports sessions delivered to a range clients aged between 20 and 60, with a
range of complex and multiple disabilities and from a range of ethnicities. All clients attend with carer(s)
or support staff, and we are working with two specific partner organisations (PossAbilities and Gateway)
who are bringing regular clients, as well as a range of independent individuals.

Your Community
Integrated Neighbourhood Team
Indoor Gentle Exercise Classes: Gentle exercise classes were reintroduced indoors at the sites across
each of the townships in September 2021. The main message to our more vulnerable clients was that
the facilities were COVID safe, with all infection control measures in place to ensure all participants were
safe.
Page 97

Outdoor Park Classes and Walks: The outdoor sessions continued with four exercise classes and
gentle walks on offer in parks in each of the townships of the borough. These sessions have been a
great success due to the ease of access to the parks and the walks being free due to funding from the
public health team at the council, with a total throughput of all outdoor sessions run was 573
attendances.
Stroke Recovery Online Sessions: continued to run on a weekly basis with the moving on after stroke
continuing with a good attendance every week and is now over 18 months online and will be continuing
into the New Year.

Your Community
Violence Reduction Work: Throughout the year we have been working alongside different
organisations in the Borough to engage young people in sport and physical activity. The young people
we have worked with have varied, from being involved in crime, to struggling with their mental health and
wellbeing, or even just wanting to participate in more exercise for fitness, fun and the social aspect.

Page 98

Alternative Curriculum: Working in partnership with Rochdale Youth Service, we have been helping
young pupils who are struggling in mainstream school, and are in need of extra support through a more
informal setting. Over the past year we have had over 30 pupils come to our Moss Street Youth Centre
from high schools including Fallinge High, St. Cuthbert’s, Kingsway and Matthew Moss.

Culture
Touchstones
• Opened 3 new exhibitions with artists George Meyrick, Jasleen Kaur and Helen Cammock with a positive response
from visitors.

• Successfully delivered Santa’s Grotto with full bookings and positive feedback

Page 99

• Over 1,000 entries received to the Football Art Prize competition. The judging panel (including ex-England
goalkeeper David James and Turner Prize-winning artist Mark Wallinger) met in October and December to decide the
70 works that will be included in the final exhibition (opening at Touchstones in March and then touring to Sheffield
and Sunderland)
• We have been selected by the Natural History Museum to be a regional partner on its Explore Urban Nature Project a three-year national learning and citizen science programme that will provide young people, families, and schools
with opportunities to understand and explore their natural urban environment.
• Touchstones voted the 15th most visited free attraction in the North West during 2020 (VisitEngland Benchmarking
Survey)
• Touchstones hosted its first wedding in November and it was a huge success. Over 70 people enjoyed the venues
first wedding ceremony, followed by a lovely three course meal and then partied the night away until midnight. We
have received outstanding feedback from the Bride and Groom most importantly, and all suppliers involved on the
day.

Challenges
Hollingworth Lake
• Royds still in situ at café sites. Awaiting legal decision on next steps
• Cottage is being cleared from former tenant’s possessions. Left in very poor condition.
Page 100

• Cottage improvement works have been initially costed. Revised scheme now required.
• Lake wall is still damaged. Due to return to normal water levels, repair cannot take
place. Dispute with UU over responsibility outstanding. (initial estimate cost £100k)
• Glamping project challenged by RBC Planners due to protected nature of adjoining
cottage

Recruitment / Retention of Staff

What’s coming up?
• Launch of new Strategic Plan 2022-2027 with new ‘Delivery Cornerstones’ approach: February 2022

Page 101

• New Partnership Agreement to 2032 finalised for April 2022

What’s coming up?
• Decarbonisation scheme to start at Middleton Arena, Heywood Sports Village and Rochdale Leisure
Centre imminently with works to be completed by 31 March 2022
•

National Portfolio Organisation (NPO): Following approval of the Culture Strategy, Your Trust
intends to submit a bid for the inclusion of Touchstones in Arts Council England’s (ACE) National
Portfolio. Inclusion in the National Portfolio would mean guaranteed investment over a three-year
period from April 2023. The bid will be submitted in Spring 2022

Page 102

• Culture Strategy: Your Trust Board will shortly approve a new Culture Strategy. This will set out the 5
year direction of Your Trust’s culture offer across Touchstones, outreach programmes, and events

• Littleborough School: YourTrust have provided a Sports Development Plan for the school site and
existing facilities to support the planning application and Sport England mitigation
• Moving Communities: Your Trust has invested in the additional modules on the Moving
Communities platform that will enable us all to measure ‘Social Value’ and produce other data driven
reports to analyse the impact our work is having on the population
• A detailed ‘Implementation Plan’ is being produced this next quarter linked to the new Your Trust
strategy, and a new set of Environmental Policies that will be communicated both internally and
externally in conjunction with the new strategy

We are pleased to answer
any Questions
Page 103

